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Corporate Information 2 &81&#} (continued )
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Chairman’s Statement FEHEE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

BUSINESS
It is my pleasure to announce the Group had commenced uranium
its first
products trading business during the vyear.

products trading and recorded revenue from uranium
For the two mining
projects, mining license had been applied for the Mongolian uranium
project and the Group had to negotiate with the Mongolian
government to establish a joint venture company to develop the
uranium project. During the year, meetings of discussion with the
Mongolian government had been held to draw up the foundation of
the joint venture company. The Niger uranium project in Africa had
increased its production from approximately 100 tonnes of uranium
products in 2011 to approximately 300 tonnes of uranium products
in 2012. Construction work of an underground mine had yet to
complete. Optimum production would be achieved when all the

construction work completed.
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Chairman’s Statement EEMEE (ontinued &)

RESULTS

Benefited from the trading business, for the year ended 31st
December, 2012, the Group reported revenue of approximately
HK$417,442,000 (2011: Nil). Gross profit was approximately
HK$37,699,000 (2011: Nil). Total comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$26,602,000 (2011: approximately HK$65,690,000), a significant
improvement as compared to last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND CONCLUSION

The price of uranium products is still at a low level and the Group
will look for the opportunities to enter into more uranium products
trading business to improve the results of the Group. Mining license
had been applied for the Mongolian uranium project and hopefully
after the setting up of the joint venture company with the
Mongolian government in 2013, the mining license will be granted in
the near future. The Niger uranium project in Africa has completed
the initial construction. However, the construction work of one of the
underground mines has experienced delay. The Group will continue
to refine its production process and review the construction work of
the underground mine to expedite the progress. It is also the
objective of the Group to strengthen its uranium resources reserve
through acquiring premium uranium resources investment. The Group
will actively search for premium uranium resources investment in the
market and target to build up the Group into a premium uranium
resources entity.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-standing supports and
my gratitude to the Group’s management team and staff for their
endeavours and contributions in the past year.

Cai Xifu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEEsimmRk D

MARKET OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 (the “Year” or “Year Under
Review”), the Group, for the first time, reported a revenue in
uranium product trading business, which generated a stable income
from the principal business for the Group. After the completion of
the disposal of its die-casting assets and business in July 2011, the
Group has been principally engaged in uranium resources exploration
and exploitation, as well as the operation of uranium product trading
business. Amid the impact of the nuclear incident in Fukushima,
Japan, the wuranium price throughout the international market
remained at a low level. However, estimating from the long-term
supply and demand and the fact that China’s goal in developing
nuclear power remains unchanged, uranium products, as the essential
raw materials for nuclear power generation, maintain considerable
potential for price increase in the long run. Leveraging on such
potential for price increase, the Group will actively run its uranium
product trading business, while monitoring market development and
establishing its long term development strategy in uranium resources
in order return for the

investment, to generate the best

shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Under
commencement of the uranium trading business, the Group reported
a revenue of approximately HK$417,442,000 (2011: Nil) from its
operating business, realizing a gross profit of approximately
HK$37,699,000 (2011: Nil). Other income, gains and losses of
approximately HK$12,550,000 (2011: approximately HK$7,426,000)
were mainly from interest income and exchange gains arising from

During the Year Review, benefited from the smooth

the appreciation of the value of Renminbi deposits of the Group. The
increase of approximately 69.0% over last year was due to the
increase in bank deposit amount and deposit interest rate in 2012.
The administrative expenses of approximately HK$23,570,000 (2011:
approximately HK$26,250,000) was approximately 10.2% below to
that of the corresponding period last year, affirming the achievement
of the Group’s effort on cost control. The Group had mainly
developed the uranium projects of proven reserves under two
exploration licenses in Mongolia. For the Year Under Review, the
Group had not invested in the remaining uranium exploration license
projects without any economic benefits from exploration in
Mongolia. The relevant provision was approximately HK$10,462,000
(2011: approximately HK$841,000).

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘&2 [ 5958 S DT (continued #)

For the Year Under Review, share of loss of an associate of
approximately HK$6,870,000 (2011: approximately HK$7,395,000)
was related to the equity share of loss of Société des Mines d’'Azelik
S.A. (“SOMINA") through the acquisition of Ideal Mining Limited by
the Group. SOMINA has just commenced production phase, and did
not put into full production yet. The effective interest expenses on
the Year Under Review decreased by
to approximately HK$32,464,000 (2011:
approximately HK$41,118,000), as no effective interest expenses was
incurred in 2012 for the convertible notes of HK$106,200,000 issued
in 2008 for which conversion was exercised in November 2011. The

convertible notes for
approximately 21.0%

finance costs incurred in 2012 only reflected the effective interest
expenses for the convertible notes of HK$414,000,000 issued on
25th March, 2010. As the uranium product trading business of the
Group has generated trading income, the tax charge for the Year
Under Review was approximately HK$2,954,000 (2011: tax credit of
approximately HK$4,067,000).
represented the die-casting assets and business disposed entirely in

The discontinued operations

July 2011, and therefore no contribution was made to the Group for
the Year Under Review. The loss for the Year Under Review was
approximately HK$26,138,000 (2011: approximately HK$57,393,000).

COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR

The exchange differences expense arising on translation of foreign
(2011:
approximately HK$1,055,000). There was no disposal of subsidiaries

currencies of was approximately HK$464,000 income
in 2012 and therefore no reclassification adjustment of exchange
differences upon disposal of subsidiaries during the Year (2011:
expense approximately HK$9,352,000). As a result of the combined
effect of the foregoing, mainly due to the commencement of
uranium trading, the total comprehensive expenses for the Year
attributable to owners of the Company were substantially reduced to

approximately HK$26,602,000 (2011: approximately HK$65,690,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘&2 [E 5958 S DT (continued #)

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The Group is principally engaged in the exploration and mining of
uranium resources projects and trading of uranium products. The two
existing uranium projects, one in Mongolia and the other one with
37.2% ownership in Niger, held by the Group have been on the right
track. For the uranium project in Mongolia, it is anticipated that
more coordination and support can be derived from the authorities
of Mongolia to have the mining license granted as soon as possible.
The Group has commenced and prepared for the construction of the
mining area and has communicated and discussed with the
Mongolian Government positively to set up a joint venture, in order
to jointly develop the project in Mongolia. For the project in Niger, it
has already proceeded into the stage of production and the Group
has prepared for its full production. The Group will pay close
attention to the uranium trading opportunities in the market, and
strive to reach out for more stable and reliable partners and seek to
enter into more trading deals, in order to generate the best return
for the shareholders. Overseas uranium resource investments will still
be the key development targets of the Group. As the current market
price of uranium products is still at a low level and is beneficial to
the long term investment of the Group, therefore, the Group will
expedite its search for quality uranium projects to expand its
business.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group employed approximately 16
(2011: 29) full-time employees of whom 3 (2011: 4) were based in
Hong Kong, 4 (2011: 2) were based in the PRC and 9 (2011: 23)
were based in Mongolia. Total staff cost incurred for the continuing
operations during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$8,015,000 (2011: approximately HK$7,847,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group's employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and conditions
prevailing in the industry. Depending on the financial results of the
Group and the performance of individual employees, eligible staff
may also be granted discretionary performance bonuses, in addition
to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes. To
raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training
courses to employees.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘&2 [ 5958 S DT (continued #)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31st December, 2012, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings (at 31st December, 2011: Nil).

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately
HK$298,642,000 (at 31st December, 2011: approximately
HK$694,934,000) and due to the expiry of convertible bonds in
2013, the current liabilities to approximately
HK$430,507,000 (at 31st December, 2011: approximately
HK$13,480,000) as at 31st December, 2012. During the Year, the
Group commenced trading in uranium products, and as at 31st
December, 2012, trade receivables and payables were
HK$102,802,000 (at 31st December 2011: Nil) and HK$3,032,000 (at
31st December 2011: Nil) respectively. Capital expenditures on plant,

increased

equipment, leasehold improvements and construction in progress
totalled approximately HK$288,000 during the Year (2011:
approximately HK$993,000). Capital expenditures on exploration and
(2011:
The Group did not have any

evaluation assets were approximately HK$5,767,000
approximately HK$15,835,000).
commitment to purchase additional property, plant and equipment
that had been contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements as at 31st December, 2012 (at 31st December, 2011: Nil).

During the Year, net cash inflow from operating activities amounted
to approximately HK$203,945,000 (2011: outflow approximately
HK$12,827,000). The Group’s cash on hand and bank balances
increased from approximately HK$383,714,000 as at 31st December,
2011 to approximately HK$621,879,000 as at 31st December, 2012.

Total shareholders’ funds decreased from approximately
HK$991,349,000 as at 31st December, 2011 to approximately
HK$964,747,000 as at 31st December, 2012, mainly due to the loss
during the Year. The gearing ratio, in terms of total debts to total
assets, increased to approximately 0.31 (at 31st December, 2011:
approximately 0.29) as at 31st December, 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘&2 [E 5958 S DT (continued 1)

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the Year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD,
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB against foreign currencies could affect
the operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB were relatively stable during the Year Under
Review, the Group did not expose to significant foreign exchange
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy for hedging significant foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the
Group since 31st December, 2011.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

Apart from the 37.2% of the share capital in SOMINA held by Ideal
Mining Limited pledged to a bank for banking facilities granted to
SOMINA, there was no charge on the Group’s assets during the Year
(2011: apart from the shares in SOMINA, Nil).

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year Under Review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed shares.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report &3

Parlasiiy
BRI

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
“"CG Code")
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2012 (the “Year”).

Corporate Governance Code (the as set out in

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at enhancing
the Company’s value for stakeholders. Roles of the Board include
reviewing and guiding corporate strategies and policies; monitoring
financial and operating performance; ensuring the integrity of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting systems; and setting
appropriate policies in managing risks of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven members including
two executive directors, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”), whose details are set
out on pages 20 to 23. Members of the Board have different
professional, industry experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development of the
Group's business. More than one-third of the Board are INEDs and
one of the INEDs has appropriate related financial management

expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information
of the Group through management and are able to obtain
independent professional advices on issues whenever deemed

necessary by the directors.

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least four times a year to
discuss strategies and business issues, including financial performance
of the Group, and additional meetings will be held when necessary.
The Company has held regular board meetings in accordance with
the Listing Rules and the CG Code and also the Articles of
Association of the Company, formal notice and board meeting
documents are also given in advance to all directors. During the Year,
the Board held four regular meetings. Members of the Board can
attend the meetings either in person or through electronic means of
communication. A record of the directors’ attendance at regular Board
meetings is set out on page 19.
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Corporate Governance Report 3B ATRE (continued )

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated in order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in
writing. The Chairman leads the Board’s workings and proceedings, while
the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the Group’s
strategies and policies and for conducting the Group’s businesses.

THE TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
(the “"Model Code”)
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all

Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by

the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
management of the Company, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
directors also ensure that the publication of the accounts of the
Group is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set
out in this annual report.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report 3B AR (continued )

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to the CG Code, directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of attending training seminar or reading material on
legal and regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business or

to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and

effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all

times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group's
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information.
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate

risks of failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material
controls in area of financial, operational and compliance controls,
various functions for risks management as well as physical and

information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safeguard
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure

compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit
Committee. It is noted that there is no significant areas of concern

which may affect the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions on internal control as set out in
C.2.1 and C.2.2 of the CG code.
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Corporate Governance Report 13 E AR (continued #)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

1 S5 B B &
RAER B AR R B2 E « B H 6
FRHTZME M

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

P42 4 IR 73 Bt FE 1 8l &
2012 2011
—¥--F =—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ok e i
Audit services EET IR 1,633 1,800

Non-audit services (i.e. Taxation and R RE

Professional Service) (BB REERE) 42 1,160
1,675 2,960

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December
2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group's financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group's accounting and finance department and maintaining good
and independent communications with the management as well as
external auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xu Shouyi
Mr. Cui Liguo
Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
None of them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or
existing auditor of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and also
had two meetings with the management and external auditors of the
Company. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled
to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where
appropriate. The attendance of each member is set out on page 19.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group's interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2012 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to the
Board.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report 3B AR (contined )

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’'s Remuneration Committee was established in
September 2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Cui Liguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Zhang Hongging

Mr. Xu Shouyi

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Remuneration Committee are the
INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their
specific remuneration package for directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes by reference to market conditions, performance of
the Group and the individual and corporate goals and objectives as
set by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled to the
Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 19. During the
meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors and senior management and
assessed the performance of executives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
On 27th March, 2012,
Nomination Committee of the Company.

the Board approved the set up of the
Its current members
include:

Mr. Cai Xifu (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Zhang Hongging

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Nomination Committee are the
INEDs of the Company and the Chairman of the committee is the
Chairman of the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report 3B AR (contined )

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (ontinved)

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence
of the INEDs; and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 19.

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of developing
and maintaining sound and effective corporate governance within the
Group and is committed to ensuring that an effective governance
structure is put in place to continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices within the Group in light of the
evolving operating environment and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted appropriate policies and practices on
corporate governance and the Board would make recommendations
to the Group by reviewing the operation of the Group from time to
time. The Group has adopted a code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to its employees and directors. The Board
confirmed that the Group has complied with the legal and regulatory
requirements and ensures the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure regarding corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan (“Mr. Li"), is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and Board activities are efficiently and effectively
conducted. Mr. Li has been appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company since 5th November, 2008. Mr. Li is also responsible for
ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the relevant corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
professional development of the directors.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has complied with all the required

qualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing
Rules.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report 3B AR (contined )

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association, any shareholder entitled to receive
notice of and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the
Company is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend
and vote instead of him.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the annual
general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries.
External auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual
general meetings and are available to assist the Directors in
addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of the
audit and the preparation and content of their auditor report.

RIGHT TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
extraordinary general meetings of the Company. Extraordinary
general meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of
any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at extraordinary general meetings of the
Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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one of the following ways:

1. By post: CNNC International Limited
Unit 2809, 28/F China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
By facsimile: (852) 2598 1010
By email: info@cnncintl.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders. The
information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provide additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings, announcements to the market and circulars to shareholders
as well as periodic written reports in the form of preliminary
announcement of results and interim and annual reports.

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER BHKZEEE HFWEEE REZEEE =
BEHER Ef B 2k BEXE

Total number of meetings held NFEREITZ 4 2 1 1 1
during the Year HEEY

Number of meetings attended: Fff i /& & 3% 0 & -

Chairman and Non-executive * & Z 3
Director BITES

Mr. Cai Xifu EHELLE 4(100%) N/A N/A 1(100%) 1(100%)

A A

Chief Executive Officer and fTHA#HE
Executive Director BITES

Mr. Han Ruiping BN EAE 3(100%) N/A N/A 1(100%) 1(100%)
(resigned on (ZB——% i@ B i@ A
Ist September, 2012) AA—HET)

Mr. Zhang Hongging RAEEE 1(100%) N/A 1(100%) N/A N/A
(appointed on (Z2—=% TiER NiE A iE A
Ist September, 2012) AA—B LM

Executive Vice President and H{TEIAHE
Executive Director BITES

Mr. Xu Hongchao AL 4(100%) N/A N/A N/A 1(100%)

TER TiE A T iE A
Non-executive Director ¥BITES
Mr. Xu Shouyi RTREE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
A iE A

Independent Non-executive BIFHITES
Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry 9 % 8 %t & 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)

Mr. Cui Liguo BBk A& 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)

Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)

—EF—
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management 5Kk aREEEEHN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Cai Xifu, aged 49, currently serves as a director of the finance
department of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"), the
ultimately holding company of the Company. Mr. Cai joined CNNC in
1992 and has substantial experience in capital management and
managerial economic. Mr. Cai has served the foreign affairs division
and funds division of the finance department of CNNC. Mr. Cai has
also served CNNC Finance Company, Ltd., a subsidiary of CNNC, as
its planning and investment manager, assistant to general manager,
deputy general manager and general manager. Before joining CNNC,
Mr. Cai had served the national foreign currency department of The
People’s Bank of China and the central business department of the
State Administration of Foreign Exchange. Mr. Cai graduated from
Hangzhou University in 1987 with a bachelor degree in finance and
is qualified as a senior economist.

Executive Director
Mr. Zhang Hongqing, aged 46, joined China National Nuclear
("CNNC"),
1991
management. Mr. Zhang had served the asset management division
of CNNC (FEIZITEEBRRAEELEI) as deputy general
manager, CNNC Hainan Haiyuan Group Co., Ltd. (F#Z% /B8MFREE
B A7] as general manager, CNNC Huineng Co. Ltd. (FF#Z[EgE
FR/A7F]) as deputy general manager and China Isotope and Radiation
Co. Ltd. (FEIRBEAE DB R A R]) as a director. Mr. Zhang had also
served as deputy department head, department head and deputy
principal of China Institute for Radiation Protection (/1 [l &g &7 5 & #ff
%tBt) within the group of CNNC. Mr. Zhang works concurrently as a
director of Beijing Rixing Real Estate Co. Ltd. (1t = H & E i E B R
NCIDE

University in 1988 with a bachelor degree in Radioactive Chemistry,

Corporation the ultimate holding company of the

Company, in and has substantial experience in asset

a subsidiary of CNNC. Mr. Zhang graduated from Peking

and from China Institute for Radiation Protection in 1991 with a
master degree in Radiation Protection and Nuclear Safety.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EE M S HEE B (contined

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continved)

Mr. Xu Hongchao, aged 42, currently serves as the Executive Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Xu was a director of CNNC Overseas
and Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.. Mr. Xu joined CNNC in 1993
and had served as the accountant of the finance department of
China National Nuclear Corporation (fF B % T 2 # 2 A]) (the
of CNNCQ), of the Assets
Management Division of the Investments Operations Department of

predecessor the deputy director
CNNC, the director of the Overall Management Division of the Policy
Research and System Reform Department of CNNC and the director
of the Investment Division of the Assets Management Department of
CNNC. Mr. Xu was a director of Sanmen Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (=
Pt EABRAF)) and SUFA Technology Industrial Co., Ltd. CNNC (1
ZEEE R EERMKBAMRAA]) (stock code: 000777), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has about 19 years
of experience in the areas of project investment, assets management
and securities investment. Mr. Xu graduated from Hengyang
Engineering School in 1993 with a bachelor degree in industrial
management engineering. He also holds a master degree in business
administration from the Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu is also qualified

as a senior accountant.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Shouyi, aged 55, had served as a director of the audit
department of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (“CNEIC")
and currently is the general manager of Yenaut Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Yenaut”). Both CNEIC and Yenaut are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Xu
has experience in financial audit. Mr. Xu joined CNEIC in 1990 and
had served as deputy director of the audit department of CNEIC.
Before joining CNEIC, Mr. Xu had served as finance manager of 1t %
EBRIEERARDA. M
University and is qualified as a senior accountant.

Xu graduated from Beijing Open
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EE & S HEE B (contined

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 65, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a
company listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also
serves as an independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0001), Hutchison Telecommunications
215), New World
825), SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 337), Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1038), TOM Group Limited (stock code:
2383), all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Hong Kong Holdings Limited (stock code:

Department Store China Limited (stock code:

Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (stock code: 8109), and
was an independent non-executive director of Excel Technology
Limited 8048), all
companies listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. He is an

International Holdings (stock code: being
independent non-executive director of BTS Group Holdings Public
Company Limited, a Company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand. Mr. Cheong has over 30 years of experience in securities
industry. He is also a member of the Securities and Futures Appeals
Tribunal, a member of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission and a member of the Disciplinary Panel A of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheong
holds a Bachelor of Science (mathematics) degree from Chelsea
College, University of London and a Master of Science (Operational
Research and Management) degree from Imperial College, University

of London.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EE M S HEE B (contined

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 43, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm,
a law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practising law since 1993.
Mr. Cui founded Guantos Law Firm in 1994. He has over 18 years of
experience in legal sector. Mr. Cui is also an independent non-
executive director of APT Satellite Holdings Limited (stock code:
01045), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
independent director of SDIC Xinji Energy Co., Ltd (B8 3% 1 £ 88 R A%
BB AR]) (stock code: 6019189) and China National Software &
Service Co., Ltd. (FFBIEUH K =T R A% 19 B R A7) (Stock code:
600536), both companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
an independent director of SUFA Technology Industry Co., Ltd. CNNC
(FEEB R EXRMHAERZAR) (stock code: 000777), and Beijing
Navinfo Co., Ltd. (bt RIU#E B B R H AR A F]) (Stock code:
002405), both companies being listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He is also a member of the Finance & Securities
Committee of All China Lawyers Association; a vice general secretary
of the Chamber of Financial Street; and the legal counselor in the
internal control group of securities issuing of Guodu Securities
Limited, Bohai Securities Co., Ltd. and China Investment Securities
Co., Ltd. Mr. Cui was an independent director of UBS SDIC Fund
(BERmRESEIRARAET). Mr Cu
graduated from the China University of Political Science and Law with

Management Co., Ltd.

a bachelor degree in laws in 1991. He also holds a master degree in
laws from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 43, currently serves as a deputy general
manager of Beijing Tonghu Dajie sales department of Great Wall
Securities Co., Ltd. (KM F#FH B R EE 7)), a company Mr. Zhang
joined since 1994. Mr. Zhang has over 19 years of experience in the
securities industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from Renmin University of
China in 1996, major in commercial and economic management. Mr.
Zhang holds the qualification of settlement practitioner granted by
Beijing Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 54, is the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in
November 2008. He had over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Li

is a graduate of Imperial College of the

University of London and holds a Bachelor of Science degree.
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PRINCI

PAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, an associate and a jointly
controlled entity are set out in notes 34, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 31.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$803,806,000.
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Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Cai Xifu

Executive directors

Mr. Han Ruiping (resigned on 1st September, 2012)
Mr. Zhang Hongging (appointed on 1st September, 2012)
Mr. Xu Hongchao

Non-executive director
Mr. Xu Shouyi

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhang Hongging, Mr. Xu Hongchao and Mr. Cheong
Ying Chew Henry will tentatively retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Mr. Xu Hongchao and each of the independent non-executive
directors had entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing 12th November, 2011. Mr. Zhang
Hongqging had entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 1st September, 2012. The
abovementioned service contracts shall continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving to the other party not less than
three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

EREFDTES
EHELE

BITES
BTkt (CE——FAA—BEMT)
ROELRE (ZZE—-FNA—BLEM
RFAL B A&

kPTEE
GRS

BIAEHPITEE
R

B FIE 54

RE 4

REBEARPDABERMAMAEN21E - RAE
A FFABAERKREAEEE TSR
BETZERBEFAGHERT  HERSF
NAEBERUEEERBE-

AABEERSBUIFRTESDRAAQF
RIAERBAH  FHH_T——F+—A+
“BEFRE=F  c RABLLECERARF
RAARKELN  FHE_ZT——FAA—A
RARB=F - LRARBAVERESES
B BEEER-—FRAS—AHELITIR=
BEAZELAEEBHMAL

ERRTESZEHSHEARZIEEER
BARBZHEBERANRERIR/L -

EERBELY
BEEFRALARKEFTHBRADT LA
EEE T TR CERBERIND AR —F
PRI 2 RIS A4 -

—T——fgR fpEEsRam 25



26

Directors’ Report EERESE (ontinued #)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2012, none of the directors nor their associates
had any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which expired on 11th December, 2012, are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. No share option had been granted
under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company.
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Directors’ Report EERIES (ontinued #)

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

¥a
AR E R EEEE0.01T.2 BEEK

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
FiE1T HFXATCHT

B2 3R & 18 5 & LiEREE AT

CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

("CNNC Overseas”) (Note)

RiZE N EERB R AR (R 8 5M) (&) YNGR X

China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CUC") (Note)  Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

BB A SN e 2 A R S A (TE A o 1) (Bt =) NGIE: ¥

China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"”) (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

FEZTEEERR(FZER]) M) AR F

Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned
by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2012.

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the

Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.
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qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cai Xifu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report &/ EifhiREE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to 94, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report %37 ZEREMHREE (continued 1)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
including the assessment of the
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due

judgment, risks of material
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December,
2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27th March, 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 44

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

E WS

2012 2011
—®-—-f —EF——F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 EETT BT T
Continuing operations FHEGCEER
Revenue WA 5 417,442 —
Cost of sales 8 & K AR (379,743) —
Gross profit EH 37,699 —
Other income, gains and losses Hi A - =k EE 7 12,550 7,426
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRAX (67) —
Administrative expenses TR X (23,570) (26,250)
Impairment loss of exploration and BR R HEE 2 RERE
evaluation assets 15 (10,462) (841)
Share of loss of an associate R NF 2 BE (6,870) (7,395)
Effective interest expenses on MR EE BEEFNEMAX
convertible notes 23 (32,464) (41,118)
Loss before taxation B %% A1 5 18 9 (23,184) (68,178)
Taxation I8 10 (2,954) 4,067
Loss for the year from continuing SEKEEBFNEE
operations (26,138) (64,111)
Discontinued operations BRILEEETR
Profit for the year from discontinued G RB K IF&LEKHEF
operations 11 — 6,718
Loss for the year FANEE (26,138) (57,393)
Other comprehensive expense Hib2HEH X
Exchange differences arising on BMEEFXEREHE
translation (464) 1,055
Reclassification adjustment HEHRBRARZIER =5
of exchange differences upon ZEDHERAE
disposal of subsidiaries — (9,352)
Other comprehensive expense for the &R E fth 2 E R X
year (464) (8,297)
Total comprehensive expense for the ARRQFHEA AEIGEERN
year attributable to owners of the FHERS R
Company (26,602) (65,690)
Loss per share BREE
From continuing and discontinued REBBLEEBR
operations BRI T
— Basic and diluted — EXNEE (HK5.3 cents)  (HK13.1 cents)
13 (5.37#ll) (13.17%4l)
From continuing operations RERFBKEED
— Basic and diluted — HEAKEE (HK5.3 cents) (HK14.6 cents)
13 (5.37%1lll) (14.6781lli)

2R hxERaRAA 31



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2012 R=-Z——F+_-A=+—H

AR e BRI IR

2012 2011
—ZT—_%F ===
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment - BEREBE 14 31,500 35,473
Exploration and evaluation assets MR KT EEE 15 194,073 199,170
Interest in an associate i NI 16 440,877 447,747
666,450 682,390
Current assets MENE E
Inventories BE 18 — 278,684
Trade and other receivables and JEWE RN R HAM
prepayments JEWGRIBIA RTEMFZIE 19 107,270 46,016
Bank balances and cash WITEBRRES 20 621,879 383,714
729,149 708,414
Current liabilities mE) B A
Trade and other payables and ERE SR R EM
accruals FERTRIBA R BAHRR 21 16,437 13,480
Amount due to an intermediate JERT R MR A A
holding company 2 RIE 22 1,302 —
Income tax payable SR 4,978 =
Convertible notes AIRIR Z 5 23 407,790 —
430,507 13,480
Net current assets RBEEFE 298,642 694,934
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAR 965,092 1,377,324
Non-current liabilities EMEEE
Convertible notes Al ¥R i =R 23 — 383,606
Deferred taxation IR SE R 18 24 345 2,369
345 385,975
Net assets BEFE 964,747 991,349
Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital % s 25 4,892 4,892
Reserves G 959,855 986,457
Equity attributable to owners of the — ZAA R A A B =
Company 964,747 991,349

FNEMUMAZHFRMBRREN T —=F
AT EHEKREERMLERRERL
THTMINETHERE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 94 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 27th
March, 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Hongqing Xu Hongchao

5k 4L B FHALE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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premium reserve

—BEEH TRE

E ERGE

BE BRGE EFHE i AHEE E-3 S %N (K548) T:'-W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETL BT B%Trn BT BRTr #A%T A%Tt BETx BT B¥Tr
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(B 5 25) (Mi5E26) (PsE26) (P aE26)
At 1st January, 2011 RZF——%
—A—8 4,292 742,835 81,471 16,584 127 7,206 81,006 13,445 3,873 950,839
Loss for the year FREE — — — — — — — — (57,393)  (57,393)
Exchange differences arising on BREMEL
translation ZENER - — — — — — — 1,055 — 1,055
Translation reserve released upon & B A A
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 27) BHZER
i (B 5E27) S s e e e £ e (9,352) — (9,352)
Total comprehensive expense for the 4 A 2 B 37 @58
year — — — — = = = (8,297) (57,393)  (65,690)
Issue of shares on conversion of BRUAREER
a convertible note BIIRE 600 125,970 — — — — (20,370 — — 106,200
Released on disposal of subsidiaries & Hff & 22 7] & i — — — = = (7,206) = = 7,206 =
At 31st December, 2011 R-B——%
+ZA=+—8” 4,892 868,805 81,471 16,584 127 o 60,636 5,148 (46,314) 991,349
Loss for the year FREE = = S = = = = = (26,138)  (26,138)
Exchange differences arising on RERES
translation ZEREE = = S = = = = (464) — (464)
Total comprehensive expense for the & A2 % 8%
year o o o o o o o (464) (26,138)  (26,602)
At 31st December, 2012 R-T—=
+ZA=+—8” 4,892 868,805 81,471 16,584 127 o 60,636 4,684 (72,452) 964,747
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4&aRE&RER
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE
2012 2011
—E—_%F —T——4%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEER
Loss before taxation from continuing REFELLEEBENDKIE
and discontinued operations KEEBZBRTAEE (23,184) (60,824)
Adjustments for: B
Depreciation of property, M - BMEREHTE
plant and equipment 3,029 8,785
Impairment loss of exploration BRETHEEZ
and evaluation assets REEIE 10,462 841
Dividend income g B A — )
Effective interest expenses Gy &5 v
on convertible notes EBRFERXZ 32,464 41,118
Interest on bank loan fﬁﬁg\ R B — 65
Loss on fair value changes of 7 f’EEE&ﬁZ
investments held for trading ANFBEEZHZEIE — 27
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BMERZHE
plant and equipment pdl SE = 2 —
Interest income FEHA (6,335) (3,317)
Share of loss of an associate EiEHE R R 2 EBE 6,870 7,395
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ek =R =N B — (12,042)
Operating cash flows before LBEEHF 2
movements in working capital FE Iﬁil/\bi 23,308 (17,956)
Decrease in inventories FERL 278,684 989
Increase in trade and other receivables J& U E 5 B 30 & E h & Uk
and prepayments FIE LA &J"Eﬁﬁyxlﬁi‘ il (101,004) (13,762)
Increase in trade and other payables & & 5 B8R 5t & H th i +f
and accruals FRIB LA R JE BT R FR3E AN 2,957 18,615
Cash generated from (used in) *E(RE)REED
operations 2R 203,945 (12,114)
Taxation in PRC paid BT B IE — (713)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) KE(RE)EETH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEFHE 203,945 (12,827)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48R ERE R (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

2012 2011
—ZT—_%F ===
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEWNBARZ
subsidiaries Be&mR A FRE 27 — 39,731
Deposit received from disposal of LESBERFELE
assets classified as held for sale BEMBI 3T2 27 — 39,731
Consideration received for disposal of HEWB A GFESZ
subsidiaries RAE 39,750 ==
Interest received B U B 6,335 3,317
Dividends received BB — 4
Purchase of property, BEME BWEKK
plant and equipment (288) (389)
Additions of exploration and REBRERFTHEE
evaluation assets (4,604) (7,343)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REREFHZEHEFH
ACTIVITIES 41,193 75,051
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE
Repayment from shareholders A% B [B1 53X — 30,748
Advance from an intermediate holding €& & /7 5§ A 7
company 28R 1,302 —
Interest paid B F8 (8,280) (16,534)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM (RE)REREEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZIREFHE (6,978) 14,214
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERASEEYENFHE
EQUIVALENTS 238,160 76,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RuReRBEEEEYD
BROUGHT FORWARD 383,714 306,797
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE HhEEEZRSE 2 52
CHANGES 5 479
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBRaERYVEE
CARRIED FORWARD,
represented by bank balances and FERTT 4 82 MR € K
cash 621,879 383,714
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 454 Bt &= piz

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

1.

GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company is China
Uranium Corporation Limited and # B #% T % % @ A 7] (China
National Nuclear Corporation “CNNC”), a state-owned entity in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience of the
shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
exploration and trading of mineral properties. The Group had
also been engaged in manufacture and distribution of die
casting parts which was discontinued in 2011 (see note 11).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 474 BA SRR I 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(" H KFRS(S)") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle'

Amendments to HKFRS 7  Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance'

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities*
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements’

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements'

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’

FE R #ET RAEIET M B R
HEA(TEEMBHREEA ]
(&)

AREEY IR AT C RN
REBZHTREET2BEHBR
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BAMBHRESRAY —FTTNE-T
ZAERT A ——FBEHE
R R S
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EEMBREERN BE —RE
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BEEAE7H 2 MEXAHR
EHRN B R 1 B B2

BRI REER KEMB®REK
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SFHERER2FK 2 3l
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BRMEREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(" H KFRS(S)") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income?

HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

Employee Benefits'

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Separate Financial Statements'

HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011)

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2015.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK
(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.
In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #54 B SRR MT5E contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(" H KFRS(S)") (continued)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
accounting.

The application of HKFRS 11 will result in changes in the
accounting of the Group’s jointly controlled entity that is
currently accounted for using proportionate consolidation.
Under HKFRS 11, that jointly controlled entity will be classified
as a joint operation or joint venture, ending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the joint arrangement. However,
the directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis and
hence have not yet quantified the impact.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs  will
financial position of the Group.

have no material impact on the results and

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on

the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment
is classified as held for sale (in which case it is accounted for
HKFRS 5
Discontinued Operations”) or

under “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

when the investment is
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition or is classified as held for trading (in which case it
HKAS 39
Recognition and Measurement”). Under the equity method,
in the

position at cost and

is accounted for under “Financial Instruments:

investments in associates are initially recognised
consolidated statement of financial
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-T—=

3.

F+=A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36

comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and

“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which ventures have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled entities
using proportionate consolidation, except when the investment
is classified as held for sale (in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations”) or when the investment is
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition or is classified as held for trading (in which case it
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Under this method, the
Group's share of each of the assets,

is accounted for under
Recognition and Measurement”).
liabilities, income and
expenses of the jointly controlled entity are combined with the
Group's similar line items, line by line, in the consolidated
financial statements. When a group entity transacts with its
jointly controlled entity, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly entity that are not related to

the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in a jointly controlled entity (continvea)
The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its

is tested for impairment
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of returns and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZE—=F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditure incurred in the search
for natural resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.
These assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification,
and any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates

reporting period, monetary items
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-
translated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
and on the

items, re-translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange

involving loss of significant influence over an
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in a joint venture and an associate, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-T—=

3.

F+=A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
in other

current and deferred tax are also recognised

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
financial liabilities, as

value of the financial assets or

appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of

initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
transaction costs and other
life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

the effective interest rate,

premiums or discounts) through the expected
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (ontinued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. instruments

Equity issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amount due from an intermediate holding company are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 BRI 5T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (ontinued)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified

as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible notes equity reserve).
In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible notes equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised in which case
the balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium. Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible notes equity reserve will be released to accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and conversion option
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the conversion option
components are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B 7SRRI 5E contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continveq)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses

Tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o A
#REH

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

\7j ﬁ% ﬁ?ﬁ% MTJL E_I:E (continued #8)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses (continved)

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is
reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is not
exhaustive):

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and
the Group has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

° sufficient data exist to indicate that,

development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the

although a

carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset

is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful

development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

3.

FEEFBER

BEEBE®

B RRFGEEE
HREFREECRAESFOER
A YRHBRTHEHHETRECR
FAEREEXTERDOE  ZRELES
FHERIFE36 B E 2R E ] FHIRE
AE (LI T aEE ) ¢

e AKERBFEERHHERENDHE
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The following are the key estimation and assumptions
concerning the future that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year and critical judgements that the
directors have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 474 BA SRR I 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZ—=F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #54 BA SRR MT5E contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continvea)
Estimated impairment on exploration and
evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may exceed the recoverable amount. As detailed in
note 15, the Group owns a number of exploration licenses
included in exploration and evaluation assets of approximately
HK$194 million in Mongolia for uranium mining which are
subject to the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear Energy and
Mongolia’s Law on Implementing Procedures of the Law on
Nuclear Energy (collectively referred to as the “New Laws").
Under the New Laws, the People of Mongolia (the “Mongolia
State”) has right to take ownership without payments of either
not less than 51% of the equity interest in the Group’s
Mongolia subsidiaries if the Mongolia State’s funding was used
to determine the resource during exploration, or not less than
34% of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries
if the Mongolia State’'s funding was not used to determine the
resource during exploration. The Group commenced negotiating
with the relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the
implementation of the New Laws from 2010 and consensus has
been reached between the Group and the relevant Mongolian
authorities that a joint venture will be established for holding
the Group’s mining licenses, which are currently under
application, with the Mongolia state holding 51% of the equity
interest of the joint venture. Upon the establishing of the joint
venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the carrying
amount of the Group's exploration and evaluation assets will be
transferred to the joint venture at fair value which will be
determined by an independent valuer and by way of a
shareholder loan. However, the timing of obtaining the mining
licenses is uncertain and if the application of the mining
licenses is not approved due to the New Laws or if the fair
value of the assets determined by the independent valuer is less
than the carrying amount of the Group’s exploration and
evaluation assets upon the transfer, the Group might incur a
significant impairment loss on the exploration and evaluation
assets.

4,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B 7SRRI 5E contined )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continvea)
Estimated impairment on exploration and
evaluation assets (continued)

The directors of the Company exercise their judgment in
estimating the recoverable amount with reference to recent
negotiation and consensus with the Mongolian authorities,
recent legal advice and are confident that the Group's interest
in the exploration and evaluation assets will not be materially
affected. In addition, the directors of the Company exercise
recoverable amount of

their judgment in estimating the

exploration and evaluation assets with reference to a
discounted cash flow analysis, whereas the possible outcomes
of the New Laws were assessed. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected by the directors, a material

impairment loss may arise.

Estimated impairment on interest in an
associate

Impairment assessment is performed when indicators exist that
the carrying amount of the investment in an associate disclosed
in note 16 may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount is
measured at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell, which
is based on the best estimate of management of the Group on
the fair value of the associate that would be achieved in a sale
transaction of those investment, and value in use. Where the
recoverable amount is less than the corresponding carrying
amount, a material impairment loss may arise.

Changes to the assumptions underlying the assessment of the
recoverable value may result in recognition of impairment
losses, such factors may include the future cash flows expected
to arise from the mining activities, further delays, increases in
the total forecast cost of planned projects or negative
outcomes to exploration activities, in which the exploration and
evaluation expenditures are considered likely to be recoverable
through future extraction activity or sale where the exploration
activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable
assessment of the existence of reserves.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the trading income received or receivable
for uranium sold by the Group to a customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & B RS ERIFZHMIFE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZEZ—=F

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided. In
2012, the Group commenced trading of uranium which
becomes a new reportable and operating segment of the
Group. The Group's reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

st S St G

TEEE
METERD B R 2K IR T
z%‘é%iﬁ&ﬁ}\(ﬂwﬁl%ﬂﬁ%%}
EWMENETIRTESRBEZER
SR -RZE—Z—F AEEHARE
MBS KANEE —IHHMERRSE
BN AEBERBEEEYHREE
Al cEMREED BT :

. Trading of mineral property — trading of uranium . BEEEES — B &

. Exploration and trading of mineral properties  — . BRREEREDE — BHER
exploration and trading of uranium and coal EEMmRE

As described in more details in note 11, the Group WM ENZFAER  REERZ

discontinued a reportable and operating segment regarding the g——i%ﬁ‘ﬂzﬁ@%}a&n SHEE $2 5

manufacture and distribution of die casting parts in 2011, MrERREESE - Bt - TXHR

Accordingly, the segment information regarding its continuing
operations reported below does not include the amounts for

BECHEAREREREXRFEZOHE
HATBREERDHEBHZH

the manufacture and distribution of die casting parts. oo
The following is an analysis for the Group’s results regarding TEBBERAFTFERLEFEERRSE
the reportable and operating segments for the current and BoRc EESWNT
prior years:
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-F——F+=-H=+—
BiEE
Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties Consolidated
& E BhiR &
LEES CEGEDE HEe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
Segment revenue 75 F56 A 417,442 — 417,442
Segment profit (loss) 53 7B ) (B 18) 30,807 (18,730) 12,077
Unallocated other income, ROBEAM WA - Wz
gains and losses & EE 6,335
Central administration costs R 1T R AN (9.132)
Effective interest expenses on AR EEREZERFE
convertible notes -3 (32,464)
Loss before taxation BREAIBEGFELSE A
(continuing operations) ES Y (23,184)

—E-—FEFH hpERsRLE 57



58

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)
aNe)

E]f %7% $ﬁ2§ ﬁﬁ E_I:E (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continvea)

6. PEEHE o

Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-_T——fF+-H=+-—
BiEFEE
Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties  Consolidated
& E B &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Segment revenue 7 #B YA — - -
Segment loss S EEE S (21,105) (21,105)
Unallocated other income, RO EEA WA - Wz
gains and losses & Esa 3,115
Central administration costs MR 1T ERK R (9,070)
Effective interest expenses on ]MERER 2 BEERERNE
convertible notes & (41,118)
Loss before taxation REBMEBEEGEELE -
(continuing operations) (1) (68,178)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the ERPPresthBTEHAER 2K

same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit (loss)
represents the profit (loss) incurred from the segment without
allocation of interest income, central administration costs and
effective interest expenses on convertible notes. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 BA TSR ZZHIEE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZEZ—=F

6.

st S St G

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved)

DEEE =

Segment assets and liabilities NHEEREHE
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s assets and liabilities REBEERBEBERERS B2
by reportable segment: (N
2012 20M
- —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT ok
ASSETS BE
Segment assets o ERE E
— Trading of mineral property —BEEEES 102,802 278,684
— Exploration and trading of — R EEREY
mineral properties 672,447 687,748
775,249 966,432
Unallocated assets AOEREE 620,350 424,372
Consolidated assets REAE 1,395,599 1,390,804
LIABILITIES BfR
Segment liabilities HEBEE
— Trading of mineral property —BEEEEERS 3,032 =
— Exploration and trading of — WERREEREY X
mineral properties 11,198 10,725
Unallocated liabilities AnREE 416,622 388,730
Consolidated liabilities o= 430,852 399,455

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources:

o Segment assets include property, plant and equipment,
exploration and evaluation assets, interest in an associate,
inventories, trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash which are directly attributable to the
relevant reportable segment.

o Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and
accruals and amount due to an intermediate holding
company which are directly attributable to the relevant
reportable segment.

RERDHBRALRDEERME

o HEEHmNMEEREAEZDHBE
EBRRYE BEERE BER
RFBEE MRBERAZE
@ FE - BRESRALEM
FEU TR IR - DA R SR 1T 4 R 3R

% o

. HEERD FEEEE 2D EE
BEREENE SRR R E M EA
RIBAREFT R - AR ER
MIER A FIFRIA »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
——F+=-A=+—RBItFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZ—=F

%TH\/D\ 5\7} ﬁ% $ﬁ§ MTJL E_I:E (continued #5)

6. PEREH ~

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continvea) )
Other segment information H fth 5 #B & #
2012
—Eg—-F
Exploration
Trading and trading
of mineral of mineral
property properties Unallocated Total
& E By 3R &
EEES KEBREDE x5 EC st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
‘BT BETT BETT #EETXT
Amounts included in the FTEN AN DB
measure of segment results A EMBAZLEE
or segment assets (FELEER):
(continuing operations):
Addition to non-current assets NE FERBE E — 4,604 288 4,892
Depreciation of property, plant #1% - B = & & &
and equipment e — (2,813) (216) (3,029)
Impairment loss of exploration #)1& & 7F {4 & &
and evaluation assets Z R AEEE — (10,462) — (10,462)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HEK
plant and equipment Bz EE — — (2) (2)
Interest in an associate NN
Z — 440,877 — 440,877
Share of loss of an associate  J& {f B & /A &)
Z k18 — (6,870) — (6,870)
2011
—T——%
Exploration
Trading  and trading
of mineral of mineral
property properties  Unallocated Total
" E & 3R &
BEES KEBREME RHHE MEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT ABETT
Amounts included in the FTENHEAS DB
measure of segment results B EBAZEHE
or segment assets (FBLEER)
(continuing operations):
Addition to non-current assets R B IETENE E - 30,830 43 30,873
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ % « B &E & &%
and equipment ZIE - (65) (176) (241)
Impairment loss of exploration 1% & 5% {4 & &
and evaluation assets 2 BIEEE — (841) - (841)
Interest in an associate N Rl/N]
THERS = 447,747 = 447,747
Share of loss of an associate  J& {f B & A &)
ZJEﬁ,a — (7,395) — (7,395)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninved) 6. FEWMEF
Geographical information E &
Revenue represents the trading income from a customer WAERE—BUREBEZEFZE
located in the United States of America. N
The Group’s operation is principally located in the Mongolia AEBFZEASHE(EMBER)RE
State (country of domicile) and the Republic of Niger. HRAEMBEEE AEERETHE
Information about the Group’s non-current assets by EztwRE N s EEERFFINOT:

geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Non-current assets

REBEE
2012 2011
—T-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Republic of Niger JE B & A0 440,877 447,747
Mongolia State (country of domicile) SHEGEMER) 224,989 234,129
Hong Kong BB 584 514
666,450 682,390
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Htblr A Wm R EE
2012 2011
—F-=-F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Included in other income, Hig A BaEmkEEBESP
gains and losses are the following: BENATNEIE:
Continuing operations FHEEEET
Interest income B WA 6,335 3,115
Net exchange gain b U 2 0% 58 3,269 3,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R& BTSRRI T (continued 2
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 8. EEREEN=
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and ERENTEESRITHAEZ 2 M
the chief executive were as follows: oINS

Discretionary ~ Retirement

Salaries  bonus based benefit
Directors’ and on individual’s scheme
fee allowances performance contributions Total

EREARE  BHER
EEfe FWRER ZBEEA TE#R @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
EBTT BRI EBTTL  BETL BT

For the year ended BEZ-%--1+-H
31st December, 2012 =+—-HLEEFE
Executive directors: HITESE:
Han Ruiping (resigned on BT (ZE—ZF
Ist September, 2012) NA—REE) 100 533 — 26 659
Zhang Hongging (appointed on RUE(ZE—=F
1st September, 2012) NE—H L) 50 267 — — 317
Xu Hongchao E AN 150 700 — 35 885
Non-executive directors: ERTES:
Cai Xifu (Note) S AGED 200 — - - 200
Xu Shouyi R 150 - — — 150
Independent non-executive directors: BV FHITES
Cheong Ying Chew Henry o B 200 - — — 200
Cui Liguo EFE 200 — — — 200
Zhang Lei K& 150 — — — 150
1,200 1,500 — 61 2,761
For the year ended BE-%——%1+-H
31st December, 2011 =+—-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITESE:
Han Ruiping BT 200 800 125 4 1,129
Xu Hongchao E AN 150 700 115 35 1,000
Non-executive directors: ERTES:
Qiu Jiangang (resigned on BEM(—E——F
Ist September, 2011 NA—BEA) — — — — —
Cai Xifu (appointed on EHE(CE——F
Ist September, 2011) (Note) AB—B )
Cik:3) 200 — — — 200
Chen Xinyang (resigned on BaE(CE——%
1st September, 2011) NA—BEf) 100 — — — 100
Xu Shouyi (appointed on e ——F
Ist September, 2011) AA—BLAE) 50 = = = 50
Independent non-executive directors: & FEHITEE:
Cheong Ying Chew Henry o B 200 = = = 200
Cui Liguo ENE 150 — — — 150
Zhang Lei K& 150 — — — 150
1,200 1,500 240 39 2,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Mr. Zhang Hongging (2011: Mr. Han Ruiping) is also the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as
the Chief Executive Officer.

Note:

The emolument of Mr. Cai Xifu was paid to CNNC Overseas by the Company.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
two (2011:
Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure set

Group, two) individuals were directors of the
out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2011:

three) individuals were as follows:

8.

EEREEME

RABXRE(ZT——F B VEE)
MARRRNRITHRAER B EXHAERE
Bz S BIREERTTHRARPTIRMH
RIBZME -

GEE

BHEEEIHERARRAINTHEEN -

AEBZhE&ERTFHNALTH WA
—E-—F WMBIALTRERAE
FHFECMESFTA L2 R -
BT=FB(CE——F :ZF)AT 2B
capUNNE

2012 2011
—g-=-F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Salaries and other benefits ﬂ@ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬂ% 7 2,749 5,133
Retirement benefit schemes contributions R K& F| 5+ & 4 3% 47 61
2,796 5,194
2012 2011
g% —E——F
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH EEAH
Emoluments of the employees were EEME N FT IR -
within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 7 7 #1,000,0007T 3 o

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 #£1,000,001T &
75 #1,500,0007C — 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 #£2,000,001 T &
78 #2,500,0007T — 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Apart from disclosed in the
Note above, none of the directors has waived any emoluments

during the year.

FA AEBEYERNEMNEETRES
RRFMALIINEMNME  ERF
EMAREEBSIMARNEERZ S
of BB AR 1E o B A0 IA B BT RE B B BR
S BEBEERNFARECAHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& Bf FSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBIAIESE
2012 201
- —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT ST T
Continuing operations BEGCEETR
Loss before taxation has been arrived B ATE B T &k (FEA)

at after charging (crediting): T & IBEER:

Directors’ remuneration (note 8) E =2 (M sE8) 2,761 2,979
Other staff costs Hih 8T A 5,074 4,384
Retirement benefit schemes contributions & & & F) 5+ 21 1t 7% (B 7£32)

(note 32) 180 484
Total staff costs BIKAERE 8,015 7,847
Depreciation of property, ME BELSEBEZFE

plant and equipment 4,192 8,733
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration — Ji : # FF & AN E & IF K 1h

and evaluation assets BEZHIE (1,163) (8,492)

3,029 241
Auditors’ remuneration = AT BN & 1,633 1,352
Cost of inventories recognised as an MRAEAI 2TFERE

expense 379,743 —
Loss on written off of property, plant and # 35 ¥ % - BE & & E

equipment Z B8 2 =
Operating lease charges on land and THEREFIAEHEER

buildings 2,493 1,605

10. TAXATION 10. B 18
2012 2011
—g-=-F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Continuing operations HEEEER
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax BIEEF{IE — fPEI (> 3
FT 5 5t 4,978 —
Deferred tax (note 24) iR FE 4 18 (P 5E24)
Current year KEE (2,024) (4,067)
2,954 (4,067)
Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise BEPEARIMECZEFAERE (B
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of XEFBRENDRLEMBHEZE
the EIT Law, the tax rate for foreign enterprises is 25% from 1 BHl - BEZTEENF-—A—BRBREAR
January 2008 onwards. INPS R 2B ER25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. mlﬁ(%ﬁ)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated B E 2 & B T 15 B R 51 B AR T
assessable profit for both years. i A LA16.5% #H & o

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the HREE QRN EFEEERIES
consolidated financial statements as the group companies B HMRGREHBERERLEELES
incurred tax losses for both years. ISR ME -

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before RNFEE R IA LGRS 2 H M &= K PR
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive MATEEEENAT

income as follows:

2012 20M
- P e 3 —E——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Loss before taxation (from continuing BREREBCRERELSE
operations) ¥7%) (23,184) (68,178)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of & & & #1551 &16.5% 5
16.5% ZHiIA (3.825) (11,249)
Tax effect of share of loss of an EEEE AR EE
associate BT E 1,134 1,220
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax H7ZBRR WA 2515 ¥ &
purpose (1,997) (1,603)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for a1 FiFE 5 2 Fi 7 52 &
tax purpose 3,124 5,323
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHMIBzHBETE 904 2,242
Tax effect of different tax rate of s IE@W% NN
subsidiary operating in PRC MEMBZE 1,692 =
Tax effect of reversing deferred tax asset BB RBEFERR ZEL
recognised in prior years MEEE2MBEE 1,930 =
Others Hb (8) —
Taxation for the year (continuing REERBAFERLEER)
operations) 2,954 (4,067)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 BA TSR ZZMIEE continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

1.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 7th May, 2011, the Company entered into a conditional
sale agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in United
Non-Ferrous (Overseas) Limited (“United Non-Ferrous”) together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Disposal
Group”) to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$159,000,000. The Disposal Group carried out all of the
Group’s manufacture and distribution of die casting parts,
which are classified as discontinued operations. Details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s circular dated 15th
June, 2011. The disposal was completed on 29th July, 2011.

The profit for the period from 1st January, 2011 to 29th July,
2011 (date of disposal) from the discontinued operations is
analysed as follows:

1. BRILEZBERE

RZE——FRAER KRAIF]L—
MBEGELE RS - A EEER United
Non-Ferrous (Overseas) Limited ([United
Non-Ferrous]) i [F] E [ff & 2~ 7] (4% 1
[HEEBE ) 2100% R AT HIE
=7 - K18 /7% %159,000,0007T ° H
EEEETAEECBEREESHHR
ERDHEEBR (DB RERIEKEE
%)  BEARZFHBHNALRFAH R
ZE——FRNATHEHZBEA %
HEEER_T——FtH=-+NAH
TERK ©

A-F-——4-A-BE-T-——Ft
AtAB (KBRS BHARKLE
ERBHBRRAFOT

1.1.2011 to
29.7.201
—E——F
—A—RB=®
—E——%
+tA=+n1A8
HK$'000
BT T

Loss of discontinued operations for the year

FREKL
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations (note 27) & B 4 - 4 4 2 7 U 25 (Ff 5E27)

EBER

(5,324)
12,042

6,718
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HEZZ—=—F+=—F=+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continvea)

The results of the discontinued operations for the period from
1st January, 2011 to 29th July, 2011, which have been included

11 BRIFEZBEIR
R-B——fF—B—BE-—T——fF+
A-+tHhBHEBIALA S @S

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are

analysed as follows:

RZERIEBEXRBRESNTMOT

1.1.2011 to

29.7.2011

—T——F

—A—B=E

-

+tA=+hA8

HK$'000

BT T

Revenue WA 93,303

Cost of sale § & B A (86,779)

Gross profit £ A 6,524

Other income, gains and losses B A m Kk EE 1,805

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX (1,724)

Administrative and other expenses THREREMAS (11,228)
Interest on unsecured bank loans wholly repayable 7B —FRBEEEE 2 EEIFR1T

within one year BERAE (65)

Loss before taxation B %% A1 B 18 (4,688)

Taxation I8 (636)

Loss for the period BN EiE (5,324)

Loss before taxation from discontinued operations has been

arrived at after charging (crediting):

ERIEREEB ZRBATERBEHR
(REA) TS IHRR E B

1.1.2011 to
29.7.2011
—E——%F
—H—HZE
—T——fF
+tA=+ANA8
HK$'000
BT T

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss on changes in fair value of investments
held for trading

Net exchange gain

Interest income

Dividend income

Y BB &R
BIEEEREZA

REZITE
FEZEHERE

8,544

27
B 5 W & (1,390)
MEKA (202)
fig B A (4)

s F R

—T-—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-ZT—

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continvea) 1.

During the period from 1st January, 2011 to 29th July, 2011,
the Disposal Group contributed HK$7,951,000 to the Group's

net operating cash flows, contributed

respect of investing activities and paid HK$65,000 in respect of

financing activities.

12. DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the
current and prior year. The directors have determined that no
dividend will be paid in respect of the year ended 31st

December, 2012.

13. LOSS PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinu

The calculation of the basic and diluted

attributable to the owners of the Comp
following data:

IQ\‘?\/&\ E]f %7% $ﬁ2§ |§ﬁ E_I:E (continued #5)
e e e L = M

HK$79,468,000 in

7T
JC

12. KB

% B o

13. BIRESE
ed operations
loss per share
any is based on the

BERIEEZEETE o
BE—E——%—A—H=Z%
A-+HhLBHE LEEEAAEE

—ETE——%Ft

EER M= FEERBIE®7951,000
B EEE B BB 79,468,000
R A EES X+ E 65,0007 °

REFEREFEABMEN - TR
SRERS  EFCEETERBE
—E-—F A=+ -BLEREN

REFBERCRILEERHE
ARREE ARG REARRHEE
BIRET I BEE

2012 2011
—g—-% —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T

Loss for the year attributable to owners ARNRAF A A ELHERNEIR
of the Company (26,138) (57,393)
2012 20M
—T——5 —T——F

Weighted average number of ordinary FrESREARAR#BERIEZ

shares for the purposes of basic and MmEFHEEERKREE

diluted loss per share 489,168,308 438,702,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & B RS ERIFZHMIFE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the

13. BlREE
KEHEEEER
ARARIBEEAEBEREEBEEER
CEBREARREEEEBIIRET 7 &

Company is based on the following data: BEtE -
2012 2011
—F—--% —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Loss figures are calculated as follows: EESTFENAT:
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR A A B ER
of the Company & 18 (26,138) (57,393)
Less: Profit for the year from B RBERIEREEE
discontinued operations (note 11) 2 RE A (BT EE11) — (6,718)
Loss for the purpose of basic and FTERAEBLCEEKZ
diluted loss per share from EREAREEEE
continuing operations 2 E B (26,138) (64,111)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

In prior year, basic and diluted earnings per share from
discontinued operations was approximately HK1.5 cents, based
on the profit from discontinued operations of approximately
HK$6,718,000 and the denominators detailed above for both
basic and diluted loss per share.

The above computation of diluted loss per share for both years
does not assume the conversion of the Group’s convertible
notes as the conversion of the convertible notes would result in
a decrease in loss from continuing operations.

PIERZOBE EXFRZBRER
REEBEEMRAERR -

RECRILEEXERS
REFE RREEKRIELEEH 2
i A 49 75 #6,718,000T N E X EFit 2
EREARESEEMER 2 &5
H REERILEEEEBZ2ERER
RESERBF A58 -

R LB RRA SRR E A
REXBZBERD  SUALFTEM
EEEzehBEIERERTERRAL
BAEBZABRERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& Bf FSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ BERRE

Plant and
machinery
Leasehold Mining and other Furniture Motor
improvements structure equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
:9=9:3 1
HEMERE WEZE URHEBREE BREUREKSE RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BT BT BETT BT

cosT %3
At 1st January, 2011 R-—Z——%—A—A 22,585 4,865 214,688 20,474 5,570 268,182
Exchange realignment [ 5 324 (11) 838 288 (7) 1,432
Additions RE = = 913 49 31 993
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 27) HENE QR
(B 5£27) (22,563) — (170,202) (16,679) (1,754) (211,198)
At 31st December, 2011 RZT——F
+=A=+-—8 346 4,854 46,237 4,132 3,840 59,409
Exchange realignment & A% — (10) (94) (7) (6) (117)
Additions nNE — — — 288 — 288
Written-off f¢1 (346) — — (4) (1,118) (1,468)
At 31st December, 2012 R-E——F
+=A=+-8 = 4,844 46,143 4,409 2,716 58,112
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  #f B R if &
At st January, 2011 R-—Z——%—-A—R 18,011 697 122,378 16,987 2,254 160,327
Exchange realignment [E 5 271 (36) 1,143 251 16 1,645
Provided for the year FERE 438 154 15,340 813 532 17,277
Eliminated on disposals (note 27) & B 88 (B E27) (18,374) — (120,375) (15,490) (1,074) (155,313)
At 31st December, 2011 RZT——%F
+=A=+—8 346 815 18,486 2,561 1,728 23,936
Exchange realignment V& 3 38 B e (2) (41) (5) (2) (50)
Provided for the year — 220 3,359 419 194 4,192
Eliminated on written-off (346) — — (2) (1,118) (1,466)
At 31st December, 2012
= 1,033 21,804 2,973 802 26,612
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December, 2012
= 3,811 24,339 1,436 1,914 31,500
At 31st December, 2011
= 4,039 27,751 1,571 2,112 35,473
The above items of property, plant and equipment are FiE BMERREERDIEAEM
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into AR FEREHREATRGE
account of their estimated residual value, on a straight line B RESEEUATFEHENE:
basis at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the term of the leases, or HEMEEE & F H gk 5F
5 years, whichever is the shorter (AR EE A
Mining structure 20 to 40 years = 20F40%F
Plant and machinery and  6%-20% B RS A R 6%-20%
other equipment HAih 22
Furniture and fixtures 18%-33% BRI R EE 18%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25% AE 18%-25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IQ\‘?\/&\ E]f ﬁ% $ﬁ2§ MTJL E_I:E (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

15. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 15. I E R:E L& E

HK$'000

BT T
COST 7.
At 1st January, 2011 R=_F——%—H—H 184,598
Additions wE 15,835
Impairment losses recognised B REEIE (841)
Exchange realignment ME 5, G B (422)
At 31st December, 2011 R-_E——%+-_HA=+—H 199,170
Additions NE 5,767
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE (10,462)
Exchange realignment ME 5, G B (402)
At 31st December, 2012 R-_E——H+-_HA=+—H 194,073

The Group's exploration and evaluation assets were mainly
arising from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group Ltd.
("Western Prospector”) (together with its subsidiaries known as
“Western Prospector Group”) during the year ended 31st

December, 2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the New Laws came into force. Under
the New Laws, the Mongolia State has the right to take

AIREDMES -

REBZWARAEIHEEFEHRE
E_ZTANF+-_A=+—RHLEFEK
8% Western Prospector Group Ltd [(7
HomDCGERAWBARGBIASLA

R-ZEEAENA+ER - FAH&
e RBFOAD  SHESRRET

ownership without payment of either not less than 51% of the DRI AEBREWEARRE 251%

equity interest in the Group’'s Mongolia subsidiaries if the
Mongolia State’s funding was used to determine the resource
during exploration, or not less than 34% of the equity interest
in the Mongolia subsidiaries if the Mongolia State’s funding

. . ; Ed
was not used to determine the resource during exploration. K e

R hxErarLE /1

(R FRERTHARLEE  HE
BR)ITPRREEMBRAREZ
34% (MR R BEPIL EBSAREE
ExBRWERIZMERE MBAN
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15. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(continued)

The directors of the Company commenced negotiating with the
relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the
implementation of various provisions under the New Laws
during the year ended 31st December, 2010. Based on
management’s discussions with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and the advice from its Mongolian legal advisers,
the Group will have the right to apply for mining licenses to
mine or extract the resource identified in the relevant areas
covered by the exploration licenses. As at 31st December,
2012, included in the exploration and evaluation assets is an
amount of HK$194,073,000 (2011: HK$197,488,000) of which
the Group is currently in the progress of applying for mining
licenses to mine or extract the resources identified in the
relevant areas covered by these exploration licenses. In the
opinion of directors, there is no legal obstacle for application
of such mining licenses. During the year ended 31st December,
2012, consensus has been reached between the Company and
the relevant Mongolian authorities that a joint venture will be
established for holding the mining licences, which are currently
under application, with the Mongolia State holding 51% of the
equity interest in the joint venture. Upon the establishing of the
joint venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the
carrying amount of the Group’s exploration and evaluation
assets will be transferred to the joint venture by way of a
shareholder loan, of which the amount will be determined by
an independent valuer. In addition, the Company has drafted
the shareholders’ agreement, joint venture's agreement and
memorandum and association of the joint venture and has
commenced negotiation with the detailed terms of these
documents with the relevant Mongolian authorities and a pre-
mining cooperation agreement was signed on 26th June, 2012
to kick off the pre-mining activities. Subsequent to the end of
the reporting date, a written instruction has been received from
the relevant Mongolian authorities that the joint venture is
expected to be established in 2013. After taking into
consideration of the recent negotiations and consensus being
reached with the Mongolian authorities, recent legal advice and
the discounted cash flow analysis, the directors of the
Company are confident that the Group’s interest in the
exploration and evaluation assets will not be materially
affected.
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 474 BA SRR I 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

BRRFEEE

HE-_Z-—ZF+-_A=1+—RHItFE
N AR EFEFUEHERMRE
EHFEG TZEBEXRRAEZ - BRIE
EEEREBEEERZNMEER
hAERBRZER AEEGEER
FRARAAE BUARARSERRL
PRETAI 38 TR E 2 B A (= A P a3 Bl
2EBR MR E——F+_A=+—
H AEEBFAMRRIBEERES
1578 #194,073,000L (ZF — —F : 8
#197,488,0007T) » & E R B R AI
B EURARSIERZENRTAFE
FIRE 2 BEEENRAZEANZEIR -
EEZRA BHEZSHARTUERE
ERLZER BEZT——F1+=
A=Z+—HIEFERN  RARAREEHAR
HERERBERLAEDEERH
BOURETIERB2RRTIE
MESBEBREEEDEREZ51% o
REEERERE AEB 2RRTH
BERAEBRDERERTIHEECRR
BERARRER T REREEE D
ZHRIBR BB LA ERETE o st
ARFEEBRBRRRE 5L BER
EUARGECEBEMERAMRER -
HERETERMNZENH 2 MK
HEMER YR _E——FA-+
NAEITRBERESERE  UWARS
JHIRERES - R EHRE - B8
ERSEERERERE T BHAE
BOEBRN-_T—ZFKT - KEE
MHERNER AR R ER 2 HE
MEEEBERRUMBRBASREDNE -
RAARZEZREAEERBERRTE
BEZEzTeXREATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

15. HERFHEE

certain  E_ T ——_F+ZA=+—HLF
B -BETHRFUEZEEER AR
RAREBREFILFIHHRTIE
FIREZ RN KRB  Z5H
FHoOEABEEFH - Bm - /%ﬁéf

15. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(continued)

During the vyear ended 31st December, 2012,
exploration licenses have expired and were not renewed as the
directors of the Company determined to cease exploration
activities in the areas covered by these exploration licenses.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$10,462,000 (2011:

HK$841,000) is recognised in profit or loss. 10,462,000L(= & — — F: B &
841,0007T) 2 A (B B5 18 X 18 &= EP i
16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. R E AT ZHER

2012 2011

—®F-ZF —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Cost of unlisted investment JELETRE 2 A 463,865 463,865
Exchange realignment PE H 8 B 214 214
Share of post-acquisition losses iR E1E (23,202) (16,332)
Interest in an associate REE R 2 ER 440,877 447,747
During the vyear ended 31st December, 2010, the Group NEFHR —ZEF+-_A=+—H1It

acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik
S.A. ("SOMINA") through the acquisition of a subsidiary known
as Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”).

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31st December, 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

iELhW%—ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ@
AR(EBREEDZHMBAG - W
Société des Mines d’Azelik S.A
([SOMINAJ) 37.2% z B A fE 25 o

RoB——HR-F——45+-A=+
—B AEEZBEATHEMT:

Country of

Attributable
equity interest

registration Paid-up held by the
Name of associate and operation registered capital Group Principal activity
AEBE R
BEATZME HZMREEZER CHEZFMREE FEIGRRHE EEEF
SOMINA Republic of Niger  African Financial 37.2% Mining
Community Franc
("XOF") 500,000,000
SOMINA JERm M 500,000,0003F )M € &t 37.2% WEEBRIR
#t [F B8 0% BB
([PEIEERB])

—E——FFER hxERERAF /3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& Bf FSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (ontined 16. B &
The summarised consolidated financial information of SOMINA
after taking into account the fair value adjustment at date of

acquisition is set out below:

ASIZER
SOMINA Z f§ S iR & IS B BHEET AR
FEAEARKWEBRSHZOT

2012 2011
- —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETRT BT T
Total assets mEE 4,423,585 3,472,670
Total liabilities wAE (3,238,432) (2,269,049)
Net assets BEFE 1,185,153 1,203,621
Group's share of net assets of an REEELEE QT
associate ZEEFE 440,877 447,747
Total revenue @A 231,032 =
Total loss for the year FRBEE (18,468) (19,879)
Group's share of loss of an associate REEFREEHE
for the year NAE)Z BB (6,870) (7,395)
17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED REREHERZER
ENTITY
As at 31st December, 2012 and 2011, the Group had interests RZE——FR_F——F+=_A=+
in the following jointly controlled entity: —H AEERTIHRZERERE
B

Attributable

Country of equity interest
Name of jointly registration Paid-up held by the
controlled entity and operation registered capital Group Principal activity
KRB
HRAENBERESE HZMREEZER EHAERERRE FEIGMRHE EEEFH
XXEM LLC Mongolia State Mongolian Tugrik 50% Providing powerline
("MNT") 5,825 support for the
joint venturers
XXEM LLC EHE 585K HEKRER 50% mAEEEEREHK

((E® 2]

IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HEZZ—=—F+=—F=+—HIFE

17.

18.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 17.
ENTITY (continued)

The financial information in respect of the Group’s interest in a
jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using
proportionate consolidation with the line-by-line reporting
format is set out below:

REREFHEEZZEE

BERASERARZEHER ZERZ
MBERBINMT - BEMBEER A
PR &ETIRR - WIADET X 25 :

2012 201
—g-=-F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment V- BEREE 28,398 31,317
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables and prepayments EH b & W sk IE R TE N FRIE 239 507
Bank balances and cash RITERRE S 232 239
471 746
Current liability mEBAEERE
Other payables H b fe {4 5k 18 (6,864) (5,493)
Net current liability mEBEF TE (6,393) (4,747)
Total assets less current liability BEERRSAE 22,005 26,570
2012 201N
—¥--% —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT BT T
Revenue WA — —
Other income b Uy 2 146 196
Expenses % (4,585) (8,919)
INVENTORIES 18. B&
2012 20M
—g-=-F —EB——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Uranium concentrates % B i — 278,684

—T——FEFR hRERERAR /5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 BA TSR ZZMIEE continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19.

& W & 5 Bk =K

B 5L 1t FE Ui
REUREMARIE

PREPAYMENTS

2012 2011
—¥—-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Trade receivables FEW & 5 BR K 102,802 =
Deposits paid EfET& 371 352
Other receivables H b B K8 3,794 5,622
Prepayments TEf RIE 303 292

Consideration receivable for disposal HENBRARIZEKRRE
of subsidiaries (note 27) (B 5E27) — 39,750
107,270 46,016

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

AEBGTHEESEP0HZEES -
RBEERARREBEZRAPRELZT
ZRWEZRFREDFTMOT

2012 20M

—g—-% —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETT BT T

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 102,802 —

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit
limits. Credit sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

The directors of the Company considered that trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period which are neither past due
nor impaired are recoverable because the outstanding balance
is substantially settled subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.

At 31st December, 2012, trade and other receivables that are
denominated in MNT, the currency other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, are HK$3,792,000
(2011: HK$4,770,000).
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EEMEFNFERZA  AKEET
MEBCERFPZEEERYBTERER
RE -AKERARBEEEMACEZ
EFFLERHEE - RTEFPZER
REEHEZ -

ARREERR RHREPLALKRS
HA K 3 MR (B 2 FE U B SRR AT I
RAGBBABNHARERELEHRDHR
THRREE -

i

RZZT——F+-_A=+—8  UE®E
BER(HESEEERBNEERUINCZE
¥ P\ (E 2 FENL B 5 AR 51 I H Ath JiE Ui 5K
TH A8 #3,792,0000 (ZZF — —F + 8
#4,770,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5& BfFSERFR T 3T continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZEZ—=F

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

21.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.1% (2011: 0.01% to 1.1%) per annum.

st S St G

20. SRITHEB R
RITEBHRERNT00EE21E(Z
—F:001ER1IE)ZH Tmiﬁﬁﬂ

EErE o
Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than TXHEHINAEBAEBEEE 2K
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out Ao B S B 2 IRITA &4
below:
Australian Canadian
dollars dollars Renminbi
HK$ ("AUD") (“CAD") MNT ("RMB") Euro
ET miT ARE
wE (Ex) (nx) B#ExR (ARED BT
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ABTrT A¥Tr BT BT BT
As at 31st December, 2012 R-ZT— 4
+ZR=+—H 207413 24 6,269 2,314 188,238 2
As at 31st December, 2011 R-ZT——4F
+=-RA=+—H 193,247 — 6,139 201 183,281 8
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. FE{1 B 5 IR 7% & H it FE £+

ACCRUALS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

RIE LR FE R R
RBEBE  BEFEABARER
232 EAESERER ST -

2012 2011
—g-——F —E——F
HK$000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Trade payables JETE SR 3,032 =
Accruals &5t R K 9,234 7,926
Other payables H b S 3R IR 4,171 5,554
16,437 13,480

—T-—Feg =RERsRaR 77
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21.

22.

23.

%TH\/D\ E]f ﬁ% $ﬁ2§ MTJL E_I:E (continued #5)
==F+=A=+=RILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. FEHHE 5 AR 7 B H b FE
ACCRUALS (continued) ﬁ IE Dl & E %..l- ’X #(ﬁ%}
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 30 days. The BEEMZTFHEEBNR30E - A&
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure EEHEMBREREIREEK - AR
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. The RIBENFEBEREERRANEE -
following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end of RMERE  ERESERERDNT
the reporting period: IS
2012 20M
- —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT BT T
0 to 30 days 0Z230H 3,032 —
Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies TXEHINAEHAEEEEB  NEEE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group LAANZ & ﬂ%‘@JTEZFEH%%BE xR H
entities are set out below: fth F& 1~ 538
MNT RMB HK$
BEEER AR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 31st December, 2012 A—E——F+_HA=+—H 3,602 — 498
As at 31st December, 2011 RZZT——F+_-_A=+—H 2,444 1,461 1,400
AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE 22. BT IERASIRIA
HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due to an intermediate holding company is EAENERAGRREASERT &
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount BRMEEKRERE - E,Z RIELAA R EE (BD
is denominated in RMB, being the currency other than the HESEERBNEEEUIN E) 5
functional currency of the relevant group entities. B -
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 23. o iR iR R
On 5th November, 2008, the Company issued a 2% unsecured R-EZNF+—FRHHB KARMAK
convertible note to the immediate holding company of the RElZHFNERAB R ZGINEITR

Company, CNNC Overseas, with a principal amount of
US$13,702,000 (“CN 2008") with maturity date on 4th
November, 2011. The effective interest rate of the liability
components of CN 2008 is 11.58%. The fixed note interest of
US$68,512 was settled quarterly. On 4th November, 2011,
CNNC Overseas converted the entire principal amount into
60,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion
price of US$0.23 per share.
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% %813,702,0003E JT 7 2% & K 38 7] #a
A% Z 4 ([CN 2008)) ' E@mBE AT

——F+—AWmA - CNZOOSEf ﬁlﬂﬁ
ZEMBHEKAENNGSE-- B F
68,5NETLEHEFEE - RZZ ——¢+

—RWAB - PESNA R E FA0.23
ENREACREBRERRARRZE
38 1260,000,000/% °
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o] #& B R )

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 23.

On 25th March, 2010, the Company issued another 2%
unsecured convertible note to CNNC Overseas with a principal
amount of US$53,282,000 (“CN 2010") in connection with the
acquisition of Ideal Mining. CN 2010 entitles CNNC Overseas to
convert it, in whole or in part of the principal amount, into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time prior to seven
business days preceding the maturity date on 24th March,
2013, at the conversion price of HK$9.50 per share, subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments. The number of shares to be issued
upon conversion is determined by dividing the principal amount
of CN 2010 to be converted (translated into HK$ at a fixed rate
of HK$7.77 to US$1.00) by the conversion price of HK$9.50,
subject to anti-dilutive adjustments. If CN 2010 has not been
converted, it will be redeemed at par on 24th March, 2013. At
initial recognition, the fair value of CN 2010 is estimated to be
HK$413,356,000, including the liability component of
HK$340,737,000 at an effective interest rate of 8.80% and the
conversion option amounted to HK$72,619,000 has been
credited to convertible notes equity reserve by reference to a
valuation carried out on that day by Greater China Appraisal
Limited.

The movement of the liability component of CN 2008 and CN
2010 is set out as below:

R-ZZE—ZTE=A=+HA ARAAH
M HF 08 Hh 3 1T AN € 5853,282,0003%
TCZ 2% AR AR =& ([CN 2010))
N EEIRAERX  EREEAERR
T CN 2010 Rz BINERN T —
—EZ AT AISAANCELEER
LA AT A (7] W ] 32 32 IR (B & IR 8 #59.50
TR EEH AT MHERAEARQA
ZEBRR EREEFARRART &
BRERTETZROBEETDUAETE
27 CN2010ARN & (LA EERE K777
TTEN00E LR E BEE) BRI EK
950 ZMREEE © HCN2010K T
RHB BIR=ZE—=F=A=+Wm
AEEETUNED - EFVRERE
CN2010Z A FE W F @ B B &
413,356,0007C * B4 B K F| £8.80%
2 75 #340,737,000c 2 B1E R - ™
EEFEERAANERENTZ
FE(E1% - (EEB%72,619,000 T A%
BEFATTBRRERRAGHE -

.

CN2008 K CN2010BE 32 285 7
R

CN 2008 CN 2010 Total

CN 2008 CN 2010 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT

At 1st January, 2011 W-—ZT——%F—F—AH 99,338 365,819 465,157

Interest charged ME X 8,654 32,464 41,118

Interest paid B & (1,792) (14,677) (16,469)

Converted during the year FAEBRRE (106,200) = (106,200)
At 31st December, 2011 AT ——4F

+=-—A=+—8 — 383,606 383,606

Interest charged B ZH — 32,464 32,464

Interest paid B F & — (8,280) (8,280)
At 31st December, 2012 NZFE—ZF

+=-—A=+—8 — 407,790 407,790

—E——FEFR hERERAR 79
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZ—=F

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

e e SNl P

23. AR ER

2012 201
—B—-F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
‘BT BT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMERB 2O
Non-current liability EMEBEE — 383,606
Current liability mEBAE 407,790 —
407,790 383,606
24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24. BEBLIA
The followings are the deferred tax liability (asset) recognised ERAZELERBEEG(BEE)ALR
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: REERELFEZEHNAT:
Convertible
Tax losses notes Total
BIEKBE ThREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1st January, 2011 A—E——F—HF—H (2,539) 8,975 6,436
Credited to profit or loss REZETA s (4,067) (4,067)
At 31st December, 2011 RNRZE——4F
+=—A=+—H (2,539) 4,908 2,369
Charged (credited) to profit or loss W Bz K (5 A) 1,966 (3,990) (2,024)
At 31st December, 2012 R-_E—Z_%
+-—_RA=+—H (573) 918 345

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$31,756,000 (2011: HK$38,194,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax has been
recognised in respect of HK$3,473,000 (2011: HK$15,388,000)
of such tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses of HK$28,283,000 (2011:
HK$22,806,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits

streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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RMERE  AEBZAGARIEE
18 578 %31,756,000T (- T — —4F:
76 #38,194,0007T) - ATAREIFH A&
wA o BLEZ ST IR BB 53,473,000
JTL(=ZZ——4F : #¥15,388,0007T) ##
RIEERIE - AR TRETE R A& % 7
R MER RN EBEBBBEK
28,283,000 (= & — — F: B &
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%ﬁ/ﬁ\ 5\7} ﬁ% $ﬁi§ MTJL EJI_ (continued #5)

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. lg &
Number of ordinary shares Amount
TERHE o4
2012 2011 2012 2011
—¥--F T ZB--§ —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BBT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEE®.01T
Z &Rk
Authorised: ETE
At 1st January and 31st December R—A—BRk
+=-A=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRHR:
At 1st January »—A—H 489,168,308 429,168,308 4,892 4,292
Issue of new shares BT A — 60,000,000 — 600
At 31st December R+-—A=+—H 489,168,308 489,168,308 4,892 4,892

As set out in note 23, CNNC Overseas converted the entire
principal amount of CN 2008 of US$13,702,000 into
60,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company
at a conversion price of US$0.23 per share on 4th November,
2011. The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.

26. RESERVES

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount
of the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a
group reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the
“Group Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued
Reorganisation.

in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) are
required to maintain a general reserve fund which is non-
distributable. Appropriations to this reserve fund are made out
of profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries’ PRC statutory
financial statements which are prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. The
amount and allocation basis are decided by the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries annually and is not less than
10% of the profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries for that
year. The general reserve fund can be used for expanding the
capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation
issue.

26.

WM FE23FTE R ——F 1 —
BB - P08 A iR AR E & %0.23
3 7T #% CN2008 & 2t K & 613,702,000
% T 2 5 7K 2 5160,000,000 % & %
BB ERBR - TRODEMETE
HIRERNEER S #Ea -

i &

TN RFEHEER-_ZEZ_F+=A
+ZHETEEEHA(EEEZAH]H
WEBRAR ZBRMD R B4R -

EHFEERERBEEEEAMBLFR
AEEABEREAQR LR IEBBRA
PRIk EERZZRE -

RETFEBBZEZERAOIRKE &
B zHBAR (FEMEBAR] A
RIYI-—REFRBES MEEFFHEED
DD - WREEESDENET
BMBEARERTE ARG RAPT
REDBEZERBRRZ2FRGEH -
BEROEEERTEMNBARZE
EREFET  HREELALRSF
B E QRN FE ZFAEN10% ©
—REFESTRARBEBRERET
BATEKMBRARZIEANER -

—E-FFR PRERERAA
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?ﬁ/ﬁ\ Eﬁ%iﬁ% MTJLE } (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As set out in note 11, the Group discontinued its manufacture
and distribution of die casting parts upon the sale of the
Disposal Group on 29th July, 2011. The net assets of the
Disposal Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

27. HEMBLAE
BAME AR ARER =T ——
FLAZthBHELEREERL
HESBHRERDWER - HEE
BRI ER 2 FEENT

lease payment together with the construction works thereon. The Group committed
to this selling plan and actively sought a buyer. In January 2011, a subsidiary of the
Disposal Group entered into a sales agreement with a third party to dispose of
certain prepaid lease payment together with the construction works thereon at a
consideration of RMB52,150,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$62,790,000). As at
29th July, 2011, the assets classified as held for sale represented certain prepaid
lease payment and construction in progress amounting to approximately
HK$5,887,000 and approximately HK$26,004,000, respectively.

In addition, deposits of RMB33,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,731,000) in connection with the disposal of such prepaid lease payment and
construction in progress were received by the Group in 2011. The amounts were
recorded as deposits received of the Disposal Group as at 29th July, 2011.
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20M
—E——F
HK$'000
BT T
Consideration received and receivable: 2 W B FE U X 1E -
Cash received BUIE & 119,250
Consideration receivable (note 19) JE AR B (BT 5E19) 39,750
159,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEBENEZEERGED:
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREZHE 55,885
Deposits paid on acquisition of property, plant and WEWE  BEMREZEHETE
equipment 271
Inventories S 29,786
Trade and other receivables and prepayments FEUR B 5 BR 5K I B FE W SR IB A 2
T R IR 52,807
Investments held for trading BIEEERE 340
Assets classified as held for sale DERFELECEE 31,891
Bank balances and cash RITEHERE 77,912
Total assets EmEE 248,892
Trade and other payables and accruals FERTE SRR R E M BN RIBEU R
& & R 38,349
Deposits received * B UET&* 39,731
Taxation payable FE 1R 109
Unsecured bank loan mEFRITER 16,000
Total liabilities wEeE 94,189
Net assets disposed of FMEEEEFE 154,703
* In October 2010, the directors of the Company planned to dispose of certain prepaid * RZE—TF+A ARREFFEAHEETE

NHEERZENEEEL E2RETR - XK
LEFHEBHEEFELIBESRER - B
T —F—f HEEEZ-RWBLREASE
SHAVHERSE HERETENHEEERZ
BEREEEXELZEEIR REARARK
52,150,0007T (%) % 4 7 #62,790,0007T) ° A=
T——F+tA-t+hB DEABEHEZE
EiESEHBIL A SIS 887,000t k4 ABE
26,004,000t 2E FTRAEERERERZTIR -

o AEBER-_T——FURBMAHEZSE
BRNEAEREEIREBZITSARY
33,000,0007T (475 7 A4 #39,731,0007T) ° A=
T-——F+A+NH ZREEHALEEE
ZEWETS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 #HZEZ—=F

27.

28.

%71‘:\/\, ﬁﬁ%iﬁ% MTJL E_I:E (continued #&)
==F+=A=+=RILFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES continved) 27. HEKMIBAE W
2011
—T——F
HK$'000
BT T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBATWE:
Consideration received and receivable B KWK E 159,000
Transaction costs incurred FMEX2RX5EHR (1,607)
Net assets disposed of FItEBEEFE (154,703)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net mt 32 2k Fff /B A 5] 4% Hil 1 5 15 B B
assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from equity to  RAAIZ FEEMB 2 RFE K
profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiaries  ZFHBRAFHEE S EEE 9,352
12,042
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMELEZFHRERAAN:
Consideration received B E 119,250
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of BBHERTEHRER S (77,912)
Transaction costs paid ENRS5ER (1,607)
39,731
The impact of Disposal Group on the Group's results and cash HEEBEHAEERR_ZT——F2 %
flows in 2011 is disclosed in note 11. BERBReRECTERENRMEN -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted for a period of ten years commencing 11th December,
2002 pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders
passed on 11th December, 2002 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to directors of the Company
and eligible employees of the Group. Under the Scheme, the
Company may grant options to eligible employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to
time, grant share options to outside eligible advisors and
consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at the

discretion of its board of directors.

28.

RE R #E 5T 3l
BREEZ2EBRRR_ZT_F+-_A+
—HBBZEMRER  AAAKEMN
Bt (a8 =TT =F
T-A+—BEAH+F  TEENA
AARREZERASEAERERR
HE B iR - RIBEZTE - ARF
AREBERETARE REWNE QR
BERREERESF  URBARAK
e lsh REEERZHBRE
ARBAAHRELBRET AR R
HEHMBEAR I REERBERRES
M o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

28.

The number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme
is subject to the following limits:

(i)  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000
shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at 6th January, 2003; and

(i) the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i)
the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the
Company for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the grant; (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of
the Company on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the Scheme must be exercised
during such option period as may be determined and notified
by the directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of acceptance of the option.

The Scheme expired on 11th December, 2012 and no options
have been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.
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BB ESTE
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FI R PR
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%ﬁ/ﬁ\ 5\7} ﬁ% $ﬁ§ MTJL EJI_ (continued #5)

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. X EE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the REBERBEEARAURRASEEER
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BREARELE  ARERELER
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation RiEDERBRREAGRESRS ° K
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy SEERBRBEFFEEFIE -
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which REBCZEAREREEY  Z5R&
includes amount due to an intermediate holding company, BERERESRNIERARIRIE - Al
convertible notes, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity KEE BekReSEWFERR
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share NAEBAEGE= (BREEEMBE®
capital and reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial R BZRAR#H®B)
statements.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AR ELZBFEREREE - ER
annually. As part of this review, the directors of the Company hWEMz—&n  XRAREFHAR
assess the annual budget prepared by management of the AEREERECFEEELETTME -
Company. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors RERZFERE AAGESFER
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks BRKRARBERBE BB - AR
associated with capital. The directors of the Company also AIESENBERAANRA BEITHR LT
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues of FESFRERREREF AT HAER
the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the BRI -
redemption of existing debt.
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 2R TR
(a) Categories of financial instruments () &Rt T EZER
2012 2011
g% —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables ERkEWRGRE(ERERER
(including cash and cash equivalents) ReZEEY) 728,846 429,438
Financial liabilities SRERE
Amortised cost 35 A AR 416,295 389,160
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

\7f ﬁ% $ﬁ2§ MTJL E_I:E (continued #8)

30. &Rt T B

(b)

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amount due to an intermediate holding
company and convertible notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at 31st December, 2012 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. At 31st December, 2012, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as the trade receivable
balance is wholly due from the only customer of the
Group. The customer has fully settled the outstanding
balance subsequent to the end of the reporting period. In
order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group review the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable regularly to ensure that follow up actions are
taken to recover overdue debts and adequate impairment
losses, if any, are recognised for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group only extends credit to customers based upon
careful evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions
and credit history.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
exposure to bad debts and concentration risk is reduced.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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30. £t T B
(b) £MEMREEBERBEK

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued) (%)

Market risk i 45 il B

() Foreign currency risk management () IMEEEE R
While most of the Group’s operations are 1%A$El7(‘ﬂ D ETD
transacted in the functional currencies of the NEEEERB 2GRS
respective group entities, the Group undertakes T MAKEETET
certain transactions denominated in foreign WINEEERS - A& E
currencies. The Group currently has not formulated IR R M H B R B
any hedging policies against its exposure to EEMRME FBR - A
currency risk. However, the Group manages its REBFBEYETINE
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the P = B) S 18 B /NE R e

movement of the foreign currency rate and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

YHEREEERZEYH
BARINERE R o

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REBUIINEFEZEE
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in BEEREBBERMER
foreign currencies at the end of both reporting HHR ZEREERT
periods are as follows:
HK$ CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
B it ERER AR BT 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AET BETr BT B¥Tx
As at 31st December, RZ-F——%
2012 +-A=+-H
Assets BE 207,413 6,269 6,106 188,238 2 24
Liabilities afE 498 — 3,602 1,302 — —
As at 31st December, RZF——F
2011 +ZA=+-H
Assets BE 233,904 6,139 4,971 183,281 8 —
Liabilities R 1,400 — 2444 1,461 — —

——EFR hxEEsERAR 87
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

%ﬁ/ﬁ\ 5\7} ﬁ% $ﬁ§ MTJL EJI_ (continued #5)

30. &Rt T B

(b) &REABEEEERBR

policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) ﬁ%/ﬂﬂﬁ(@)
() Foreign currency risk management (continued) () IMEE BB )
Sensitivity analysis BRE DN
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to TRFMAEEHETH
a 5% (2011: 5%) increase and decrease in US$ FE B8 Oh A 5% (ZF —
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2011: —F:5%) ZHREE 5%
5%) represents management’s assessment of the —E——F 5% AREE
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange BEINEERAIgE MR 2
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only EREEP M HRE
outstanding foreign currencies denominated AT EBREN R ERK R
monetary items at the end of the reporting period REE 2 ASNE DB & 8
and adjusted for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in IBE - WHINEEFSY (=
foreign currency rates. A positive number below T——F 5%) @EELH
indicates a decrease in loss where US$ weakens o LTIESIEZET A E
5% (2011: 5%) against the relevant currencies. For A EERESY (2 ——
a 5% (2011: 5%) strengthening of US$ against the F:5%) K BB B MR
relevant currencies, there would be an equal and Do BEILAEEEK A
opposite impact on loss. Since HK$ is pegged to B5% (ZF — — & :5%)
US$, relevant foreign currency risk is minimal and B Alge ¥ B E B R F 48
excluded from the calculation below. Rzg& AR EEREE
TCENED - WA B AN R B
BIK - AT ERIRTEE
TR o
CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
mx ERER ARE BT R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETr B¥Tr
2012 -
Decrease in loss for the year 4 A& 18 H 313 125 9,347 — 1
2011 —g——%
Decrease in loss for the year 4 A 5 18 J3 > 307 126 9,091 = =

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i1)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank balances and
convertible notes. Bank balances at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Details of the Group’s bank balances are disclosed

in note 20.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group does not expose to significant cash flow
interest-rate risk on financial instruments as the
interest of the Group’s financial liabilities and
fluctuation in interest rate are insignificant. Also,
the directors of the Company consider those
interest bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity period and the effect on fluctuation in

interest rate is insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to the liability component of the
fixed rate convertible notes.

%ﬁ/ﬁ\ E]fﬁ%i&% MTJL Eﬂf (continued #8)

30. £t T B
(b) €M EMGEEEHERBE

(%)

i 45 g )

(i)

—ET——EFR hpEEsERAF 89

RN <
AEBZHMNEEHERAKE
EHREBITEHRAR
BEEM - RFBEEX
AEZEBITREKRERALE
BEEEHRESRENER
S o NEBIRITHEBFES
B FE20H 5 -

7R [ 35 B 3 4 R R S O
HE- R EEEEE
KN EE R LR T EE
ERHHERMEER -

HRASECBREAEZF
BRFERZEBHETRE
BWASBEYERSRTA
HHERRERENRE
oo WO KRAEFR
R ZERBRITERTD
EREBMARE - B XK
BIREFFME -

7 % B 75 3 B 5 B K 7 48
BEEZEEDHEHA
TEAEARR -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(9]

#ﬂ\/ﬁ\ E]jﬁ%iﬁﬁ MTJL E } (continued #5)

30. &Rt T B

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details Group’s contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest

and principal cash flows.

(b) RIEMEEEERBE

(&)

VA =g
REBRBELARE  A%HE
BEERESRSRRSSED
BEREBERARTRZKF - U
BAAEEZEEMEE SRR
BERERERDITE -

TRANAKBFTESREE
R E & R R 2 BB HIB
oo RERBIREAEEASMN
ZEFABRZEMABERMKRR
ERMERHE - ZRBEEBENER

reBHERE -

On
Weighted demand Total Total
average or0to30 31to60 61to 365 1-5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate days days days years cash flows amount
BERS 3NE 61E B3R
mEFHHE 0E30H 60H 36580 1E5E mESE REAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BEFT BEFT BEFTT BETT BEFT BEFR
As at 31st December, 2012 NR-®——%
+=-A=+-8
Trade and other payables EREZERREM
P& 5RR — 7,203 — — — 7,203 7,203
Amount due to an intermediate JE A5 FR Y 2 R
holding company NS/ $':] — 1,302 = — — 1,302 1,302
Convertible notes B S 8.8 — — 415,883 — 415,883 407,790
8,505 — 415,883 — 424,388 416,295
As at 31st December, 2011 AZE——%
+=-RA=+-—-H
Trade and other payables ERNEZERLEM
A 5R0R — 5,554 — — — 5,554 5,554
Convertible notes AR E 8.8 — — 8,303 415,883 424,186 383,606
5,554 — 8,303 415,883 429,740 389,160
Fair value (0 AF{HE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial

assets and financial

liabilities

recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their fair values.

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=—F+=-A=+—HIEFE

31.

32.

%ﬁ/ﬁ\ 5\7} ﬁ% $ﬁ§ MTJL EJI_ (continued #5)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31 EEHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding R EHE  NEBRERS AW
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- RN ZA AP HEKERE - NTAF
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due HIMNzREEBEKEHAER
as follows: HAEWT
2012 2011
—¥—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Within one year —FR 963 1,160
In the second to fifth year inclusive FZFEFRF
(BREREREMF) — 586
963 1,746
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHENRERASEREE THA
Group for certain of its office. Leases are negotiated for a ERENES - FIREcI L HEFH
terms of 1 to 3 years initially and rentals are fixed and no RIE3F - MEHETE BEHR KA
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental e NRET LA L -
payments.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 32. B K& F 5t &

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated
in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme") for
all its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable in

required contributions under the scheme.

the future years.

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in
Mongolia State, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“the Schemes”) organised by the
Government of Mongolia whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at a rate of 11%-13% of
the eligible employees’ salaries. Contributions to the Schemes

vest immediately.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to
the relevant retirement benefit schemes in respect of
continuing operations is HK$241,000 (2011: HK$523,000).

AEER_ZETETET_A—AEAR
HEBSMBGARKEELE A
MABEFE(RERITE]D - BE
SHERERHERAE S EIEAT
Al A BEeFEERBEM - ®IE
CEEBCEERBIULETALES - B®
AEBEZESHDFABAE  REBRES
FEzHEE EXREEESAER
MANFEE 2L RFETEIERHR - K
SERRESTEEACE—BTER
BEFTEIEERERR - AEEHE
B K OURE R R R FE B 2 #

e
A °

REBEXGEZHERS AR ARG -
AEE2BERETBRFEN 2 EBER
BAERBANGFE (TZFAE] - B - K
SEAZAERREEFT T ZN%E13%
AZEFHEELHR - MR FEZ
HRTIENESFE -

FTARAEBRBELCLEBRNERE
RAEF 5H 8 2 48 3k & & 241,0007T
— T —— 4 B #523,0000T) °

—E-FFR PRERERAA
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The following transactions and balances were entered into
during the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting
period respectively.

(i) Remuneration of directors and other
members of key management
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

3. FAEFHE

PATS 32 5 R 5 93 B B £F A ET ST 3
REBRERER -
() EERHEMERETERER

EZi&
FRNEENEMEZEEERKE
ZBenT:

2012 20M

—¥—-F —BE——f

HK$'000 HK$'000

EETRT BT T

Short-term benefits % B R 5,449 8,073
Post-employment benefits RIK &8 T 108 100
5,557 8,173

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

(ii) Transactions and balances with PRC
government-related entities in the PRC
The Group operates in an economic environment
currently pre-dominated by entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government.

In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CNNC which is controlled by the PRC
government. The transactions and balances are disclosed
in note 22 and the issue and conversion of convertible
notes are set out in note 23 and the related effective
interest expenses of approximately HK$32,464,000 (2011:
HK$41,118,000) to its immediate holding company in
which interest paid amounted to HK$8,280,000 (2011:
HK$16,469,000).
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(ii)

FHNEZBEEEEEFRERTTH
ABEBRBEETSBERERE
B"EZFHMH -

1S =P [ £8P B I KT 4E B
BZXHREHR
REBERZEERERBTE
BTG - KRR REAY 2
ZEREES-

ot - AEEXRERPRERE
TREZRARKE 22— MPEE
BAPRBFES - XHREH
WERKE22  BiThEHTH
BREEEHNWE23 THEEE
7= 1% N B A #78 #32,464,000
TL(ZF ——F : B %41,118,000
TZEEERFERZ(EPE
1~ F) B &7 8,280,000 (= F
——4F : #¥#16,469,0007T)) °
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AN
AR A

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (ontinuea)

(ii) Transactions and balances with PRC

government-related entities in the PRC

(continued)

Eﬁﬁ%i&% Izﬁ E_I\:E (continued #&)

st S St G

33. BESHE )

(i)

The Group has also entered into various transactions,

including deposits placements with certain banks and

financial institutions which are PRC government-related

entities in its ordinary course of business. The directors of

the Company are of the opinion that except as disclosed

above, transactions with other PRC government related

entities are not significant to the Group’s operations.

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the associate

(iii)

of the Group has commenced the mining operation and

made sales of uranium of HK$231,032,000 (2011:

nil) to

a fellow subsidiary of the Company, which is a subsidiary

of CNNC.

NohEEPREBAFHEBEE
BZ2XE R

AEETR —BREHBIEPEE
TEFBREBESBEHAERE CRITR
TREBIILZIERS  BERF
ETER - ARREERE KL
XN HEMPREBNE @
ZRGHAEBEEWIE

-

B L

o

Nﬁﬂl

BHE—ZT——-F+=-A=+—H
EFEA AEE-—RHBE QR
ERBRREER  WRAKRAF—
MREMBRAR(AHZEE 2
B8~ A1) 8 & 4 #231,032,000

T(CE——F T)ZHER -

——EFR hrEEsRA7 93
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

both reporting periods are as follows:

%ﬁ/ﬁ\ 5\7} ﬁ% $ﬁ§ MTJL EJI_ (continued #5)

34. AAT X EMEBATHIE

RREREHK  NXAGZEEZNB
NAIFBAT:

Issued and fully

Proportion of nominal value

paid share/ of issued/registered capital held
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EETRAEKK FAERFERT/
MEBASEHE & M 3L 3 B /HRBE dRRATEZLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# Bl #
2012 2011 2012 2011
=%--f _5--% ZB-Zf “%-—-%
% % % %
China Nuclear International  British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Investment holding
Corporation ("BVI") US$50,000
TREREEERLE  REBABARES L8 1850,000% T 100 100 - — REER
(RE4BRES))
Emeelt Mines LLC People of Mongolia Registered capital - - 100 100 Mineral exploration
US$ 10,000 in Mongolia State
Emeelt Mines LLC L) B BAR10,000% T - - 100 100 RELERE
Ideal Mining BVI Registered capital — — 100 100 Investment holding
US$50,000
BERS ZBRBRES i RA50,000% 7T - — 100 100 RAERK
Western Prospector Mongolia People of Mongolia Registered capital — — 100 100 Mineral exploration
LLC US5$10,000 in Mongolia State
Western Prospector Mongolia 5 & MR 10,000% T — - 100 100 RELEFE
LLC
Focus International BVI Ordinary shares — — 100 100 Trading of Uranium
Development Corporation US$50,000 Products
EHERERARAT EBABRES £ 50,0005 T — - 100 100 HERES

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results,
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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Information about the Statement of BREARNARF N HKER
Financial Postion of the Company

(@) Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

(b)

the reporting period:

(a)

i

A

AR

BERRARRBHFHERRE

2012 2011
—®—_-f —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRAIZIEE 122,919 390
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NGRS 1,025,645 983,353
Other receivables H b e W FRIE 272 40,802
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 260,269 376,075
Total assets REE 1,409,105 1,400,620
Other payables and accruals E b fE S 518 I FEFT R 3K 1,953 2,755
Convertible notes Gl &8 407,790 383,606
Deferred taxation IR FE 7 18 345 2,369
Total liabilities FER=R 410,088 388,730
Total assets less liabilities MEERAE 999,017 1,011,890
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital % A 4,892 4,892
Reserves f# 994,125 1,006,998
999,017 1,011,890
Statement of changes in equity (b) EXREHE
Convertible
Non- notes
Share Share Capital distributable equity Accumulated
capital premium  reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AASiRk TREZHE
BE BOEE EXGHE ik ¥ B Ak -4l i @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR BETT  BETFR BETT BETFR
At 1st January, 2011 RZT——F
—A—H 4,292 742,836 31,392 98,291 81,006 (52,752) 905,065
Profit and total comprehensive FREFR2EERALE
income for the year — — — — — 625 625
Issue of shares on conversion of R RZ R
convertible notes BEITRG, 600 125,970 — — (20,370) — 106,200
At 31st December, 2011 R-_ZE——F
+=-—A=+—8” 4,892 868,806 31,392 98,291 60,636 (52,127) 1,011,890
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZEKRALE
expense for the year — — — — — (12,873) (12,873)
At 31st December, 2012 R-ZT—=F
+=-—A=+—8 4,892 868,806 31,392 98,291 60,636 (65,000) (999,017)
TR SdxEpsREan 95



Financial Summary 8% 2

Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of the WA TRHIIAEEHEE-"T——F+-A=+
five years ended 31st December, 2012 (including discontinued —BIFRABEESFEZHBHE(BEER
operations): IEEEET) -

RESULTS E 4

For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EEN\F _TTNhEF _T-TF _T——F ZTB-—F§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT #EBTR

Revenue W = 209,082 136,571 168,048 93,303 417,442
Loss before taxation B % A& 18 (20,430) (41,655) (62,856) (60,824) (23,184)
Taxation credit (charge) MEEE(ZH) 713 1,265 7,777 3,431 (2,954)
Loss for the year FANEIE (19,717)  (40,390) (55,079) (57,393) (26,138)
Loss per share SR EBE
— basic (HK cents) — ZEARGEW) (8.1) (10.1) (12.8) (13.1) (5.3)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREBRE
As at 31st December,
mW+=-—A=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

—ETN\F ZETNF ZT-TF _T——F Z¥-—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BEFr B¥Fr #EETRT

Total assets BEE 613,513 994,918 1,472,283 1,390,804 1,395,599
Total liabilities FR=NE (143,873)  (137,323)  (521,444)  (399,455)  (430,852)
Equity attributable to RRREB A

owners of the Company  JE{h# 35 469,640 857,595 950,839 991,349 964,747
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